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Schenck
ADVISÔRY I lAX I ASSURANCE

lndependent auditors' report

To [he Vi[[age Board

Viltage oF Marshatt, Wisconsin

REPORT ON THE FINANC¡AL STATEMENTS

We have audi[ed [he accompanying tinancialstalements of the governmentaI ac[ivilies, the business-type ac[ivities, the

discreLely presented component unil, each major Fund, and [he aggregale remaining Fund inFormation oF the Village oF

Marshall, Wisconsin (the "Vittage") as oF and tor lhe year ended December 31,2017, and Lhe related notes to the
FinanciaI stalemen[s, which cotteclivety comprise the Vittage's basic Financialstatements ¿s lisled in the table oF

contents.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsib[e For lhe preparation and fair presentation oF these tinanciats[atements in accordance wi[h
accounting principles generatty accepted in lhe United States oF America; this includes lhe design, implemenla[ion, and

mainlenance oF inlernatconLro[ relev¿nl lo [he preparaLion and Fair presentation oF Financials[atements [haL are Free

trom material missLaLemen[, whether due to traud or error.

AU DITORS, RESPONSI BILITY

Our responsibitity is lo express opinions on these FinanciaI stalements based on our audil. We conducted our audit in

accordance with auditing s[andards generatly accepLed in the Uniled Slales oF America and the slandards applicable [o

Fin¿ncialaudits contained in Covernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolter CeneraloF lhe Uniled S[¿tes.

Those standards require that we plan and perForm lhe audit [o ob[ain reason¿ble ðssurance abouI whether Lhe

FinancialsLa[emen[s are Free of maleriaI misst¿lemenl.

An audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audil evidence abouL Lhe amounts and disctosures in lhe FinanciaI

staLements. The procedures selec[ed depend on the audilors' judgment, inctuding lhe assessment of Lhe risks of
m¿teriaI misslatement of the financialsLatements, whe[her due to Fraud or error. ln making those risk assessmenls, the

¿uditors consider internaI contro[ relevanl to the Vi[[age's preparaLion and tair presentation oF lhe Financials[atemenLs

in order to design audiL procedures thal are appropriale in the circums[ances, bul not For the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the eFFectiveness oF lhe Vi[[age's internatconlro[. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit ¿tso

includes evalualing the appropriðleness oF accounLing policies used and lhe reasonab[eness of significant accounling

estimales made by mðnðgemenl, as we[[ as evatuating the overa[[ presenLalion oF lhe Financi¿tslatemenls.

We believe tha[ the audil evidence we have obtained is suFFicient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our audil
opinions.

OPINIONS

ln our opinion, the Financials[atemenls reFerred to above present Fairly, in at[ maLerial respecLs, the respective FinanciaI

posilion oF the governmenlatactivities, Lhe business-lype ac[iviLies, Lhe discretety presen[ed component uni[, each

major tund, and the aggregate remaining Fund inFormation oF the Vittage ¿s oF December 31, 2017, and Lhe respective

changes in tinanciaI posilion and, where applicabte, cash Flows lhereoF and the budgelary comparison For lhe CeneraI

Fund For the year lhen ended in accordance with accounting principles genera[[y accepted in the United SLates of
America.
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OTHER MATTERS

Required SupplemenLary lnFormation

AccounLing principles genera[[y accep[ed in the Uni[ed SLates oF America require lhat the schedules reta[ing [o
pensions on page 41 be presenled to supptement lhe basic Fin¿nci¿lslalements. Such intormalion, allhough not parL

of the basic tinancial s[a[emenls, is required by the CovernmentatAccounLing S[andards Bo¿rd, who considers iL Lo be

an essen[i¿l parl of financi¿[ reporLing For ptacing the basic FinanciatsLaLemenls in an appropriale operationat,

economic, or historicaI conlex[. We have applied cer[ain [imited procedures to lhe required supptemenLary intormation

in accordance wilh audiling standards genera[y accepted in the Uniled Sta[es of America, which consisted oF inquiries

of managemenl about the me[hods of preparing [he into¡malion and comparing [he inFormalion For consis[ency with
management's responses lo our inquiries, [he basic financiatslalemenLs, and other knowtedge we obLained during our

audil oF lhe basic financialstaLements. We do not express an opinion or provide any ðssurance on Lhe intormation

because [he limi[ed procedures do no[ provide us with suFFicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

âssu tance.

Management has omit[ed lhe managemenl's discussion and analysis thaL accounling principles generally accepted in

[he United S[¿tes oF America require Lo be presenled lo supplemenl the baslc FinanciaI stalements. Such missing

intorma[ion, atthough nol a part of the basic tinanciaI slatements, is required by the Covernmen[alAccounling

Slandards Board, who considers il lo be an essentiaI part oF FinanciaI repor[ing For ptacing the basic tinanciaI

slðlements in an appropriaLe operaliona[, economic, or historicaI conlext. Our opinions on the basic tinanciaI

sLatements are not attected by this missing intormalion.

OLher lnFormation

Our audil was conducled For the purpose oF Forming opinions on ihe financiaI stðlemenls thaL cottectivety comprise the

Vittage's basic FinanciaI slaLements. The FinanciaI inFormation listed in the !¿ble oF conLents as supplementary

intormation is presenLed tor purposes oF addilionaI analysis and is not a required parl oF lhe basic FinanciaI sta[ements.

The supplemenlary inFormation is the responsibitity oF managemenl and was derived trom and retales directly to the

underlying accounling and olher records used lo prepêre the basic FinanciaIstalemenls. Such inFormaLion has been

subjected lo the audiLing procedures apptied in the audil of lhe basic Financiatstatements ¿nd certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such inFormation directly to lhe underlying accounting and other
records used [o prepare the basic Financialstatements or Lo the basic Fin¿nciaI statemen[s themselves, and other
addition¿[ procedures in accordance with auditing sLandards generatly accepted in lhe Uniled Sla[es of America. ln our

opinion, the supplementary intormation is Fairly s[¿ted in a[[ ma[eriaI respecls in relation Lo the basic tinanci¿[

stâtemenls as a whote.

OTHER REPORTING REQU¡RED BY GOVERNMENTAUOITING STANDARDS

ln accord¿nce wi[h Goyern ment Auditing Standords, we have also issued our reporl da[ed May 4,2018, on our

considera[ion oF the Vi[[age's inlernaI conLro[ over FinanciaI reporling and on our [esLs of its compliance wilh cerLain

provìsions oF [aws, regu[alions, conLracts and granL êgreemenls and olher matlers. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our lesting oF inlernatconLro[ over FinanciaI reporting and compliance and the resutls oF thaI
lesling, and nol lo provide an opinion on the inlernalconLro[ over FinanciaI reporting or on comptiance. That report is

an inLegraf parl oF an audil perFormed in accordance wi[h Covernment Auditing Standords in considering the Village's

internaI controI over FinanciaI reporting and compliance.

CertiFied Pubtic Accoun [ants

Creen Bay, Wisconsin
May 4, 2018

2



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 3L,2OI7

Component
unitGovernmental

Activities
Busi ness-type

Activities Totals CDA

ASSETS
Cash and inves[ments
Receivables

Taxes and speciaI charges
Detinquent laxes
Accoun ts
Specialôssessments
Loa ns

Property hetd For Fulure use
AsseLs held tor resale
Res[ricled asseLs

Cash ¿nd invesLments
CapilaI assets, nondepreciable
Capilat asse[s, depreciable

Totat assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current tiabitities
Due [o other governmenLs
Accrued interesI payable
Long-term obtigations

Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension tiabitity

ToLaI tiabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes levied For subsequent

yeôr
Pension retaLed amounts

Total deterred inFtows of resources

NET POSITION
NeI investment in capitaI assets
Restricled
U nrestric[ed

TotaI net position

s 5,72B,BB7 5 1,622,003 5 7,350,890 5 r¿r,00¡

2,77 0,411
542

20,064
?,109

2,770,411
542

144,031
2,109

123,967

290,488

s69,zgs
291,128

11 ,087 ,644

77,090

154,722

2,002,348
7,962,943

290,488
154,722

569,285
2,293,476

19,0s0,587

18,642,026 13,984,s1 s 32,626,541 218,153

465,622 78,108 543,730

169,641
55,283

2,8s5,873
66,131

2,170,135
3,475,409

6,948
6,581

3,797

176,589
61,864

2,855,873
69,928

2,370,838
4,303,955

69,531

B, 801.794

250,703
828,546

10,209

1,106,784 9,908,s78

59 322

2,422,665
186,563 3

2,422,665
21 8,668

228 32,105 2,641,333

8,010,948
253,605

(s67,e27)

10,299,834 17,875,782
s69,285 822,890

) ñ<a Ã1\ 1,921,688 218,153

3JÁ9-5-62L I.J2.923J3A- l-20*62-0J50- l-Zl3-ll3-

The notes to the bosic financial stotements ore on integral part of this stotement.
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF ASTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3r.20L7

Program Revenues

Functio rams Expenses
charges for

Services

operating
Grants and

c0ntributions

CapitalGrants
and

contributions

GOVERN MENTAL ACTIVITIES
CeneraI government
Pubtic saFely
Pub[ic works
Hea[[h and human services

Cullure and recrealion
Conserva[ion and developmenL
lnteresl and tiscaI charges

TotaI governmentaI ac[ivities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water
Sewer

TotaI busi ness-type aclivities

TotaI primary governmenl

COMPONENT UNIT
CDA

452,876
644,087

1,096,963

5 4.14s,735

1 ¿Ãq ç?q

-):J-

s 1 824.735

s 542,291 $

1,125,433
620,335

7,500
632,865

4,352

51,493 $

3s,851
165,034

s

101,222
1,610

13,643
142,880

54,446

11 996

3,048,772 355 210 210 969

645,500
824,025

s 210.969

s 1.s00,049 s s

CeneraI revenues
Taxes

ProperLy taxes
Tax inc¡emen[s
O[her taxes

FederaI and state granLs and other conLributions
not restricted to specitic tunclions

lnterest and investment earnings
Misce[[aneous
Cain on sate of asset

Transters

TotaI generaI revenues and [ransFers

Change in net position

Net posiLion - January 1

Net posiLion - December 31

The notes to the basic financial stotements ore an integral part of this stotement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and changes in Net Pos¡tion

c0mponent
unitGovef nmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Totals CDA

5 (4e0,798)
(1,07s,93e)

(312,421)
(7,s00)

(477,197)
(2,742)

(1 15,996)

5 (4e0,7e8) 5

(1,07s,e3e)
(312,421)

(7,s00)
(477,1e7)

(2,742)
(1 1s,996)

(

(2, 482,593) Q,482,s93),

192,624
179,938

192,624
179,938

372,562 372,562

(2,482,se3) 37?\ 62 (2,1 10,031)

(1,s00,049)

1,413,273
667,234

89,426

47 4,509
33,777
7 5,873

6,057

10,269

1,413,273
667,234

89,426

47 4,509
44,046
7 5,873

6,057

4,064

'150 653 150,653)

2,910,802 (140,384) 2,770,418 4,064

660,387

19 959 973 714 138

428,209

7,268,417

232,178

12,691,556

(1,49s,98s)

5

s 7.696.626 s 12.923.734 s 20.620.360 s 218,153



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 3L,2OI7

0ther
Governmental

ru nds Totals

ASSETS

Cash and investmenLs
Receivables

Taxes and speciaI charges
Detinquent [axes
Accounts
SpeciaI assessments

Advance to oLher tunds
Assets held For resate

To[aI assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabitities
Accounts payabte
Accrued and oLher current liabitities
Advance from other tunds
Due to other governmenls

Tota[ [iabilities

Deterred intlows oF resources
Property taxes levied tor subsequenl

yeê r

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

General Debt serv¡ce TIF N0. 1

5 3,806,s83 927 ,140

789,783 2,770,411
542

20,064
2,109

136,722
154,722 154 722

5 5.276,284 s s74.862 s1.716.923 s 1.245.388 s8.813.457

s 118,678 s

456,184

5 87 6,486

206,700

7,480

S s,728,887

1 ,317 ,7 44
542

12,584
2,109

136,722

23,064
50,356

$ 5 ¡,osz 5 5 t øg,oqt
55,283

136,722
2,855,873

142,920
4,927

136,722
2,855,873

2 929 293 3,657 284,569 3,217,519

969 998 456,184 789 783 206 700 2,422,665

136,722 18,000
684,849

65,970

154,722
1,727 ,010

65,970
4,632

1,220,939

118,678 923,483

4,632
1,235,639

ToLaI tund balances

Tota[ liabitilies, deFerred intlows
oF resources, and Fund balances

The notes to the bosic financÌal statements are an integral port of this stotement.

(14,700)

1,376,993 118,678 923 483 7 54,119 3,173,273

s s.276.284 s s74.862 s 1.716,923 l_1-¿1æg- s B 813.4s7
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

TotaI Fund batances as shown on previous page

Amounts reporled For governmentaI activities in the sla[ement of neI position

are difFerent because:

Capitatassels used in governmentatactivi[ies are not current tinancial

resources and [herefore are no[ reported in lhe funds.

Some deterred outFtows and intlows of resources retlect. changes in

long-term tiabitities and are not reported in the tunds.

Deferred outtlows retated lo pensions

DeFerred inllows related to pensions

Long-Lerm tiabitities are nol due and payabte in the currenl period and,

thereFore, are nol reported in the tunds.
Bonds and notes payable

Compensated absences

NeE pension tiabitity
Accrued inLerest on long-term obligalions

Net position oF governmen[atactivi[ies as reported on the StaLemenl
of Net Posilion (see page 3)

The notes to the bosic financial statements ore an integrol part of this statement.

$ ¡,173,273

9,965,291

465,622
(186,s63)

(s,s87,177)
(8,367)

(se,322)
(66,131)

j_1.6e6,626_
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OT7

General Debt service TIF No. t

0ther
Governmental

Fu nds T0tals

REVENUES
Taxes
lntergovern menla I

Licenses and permits
Fines and forteits
Public charges For services
lntergovernmentaI charges for services
Misceltaneous

TolaI revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rren t

CeneraI government
Pubtic saFety
Pubtic works
Heatth and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and devetopment

Debt service
Principal
lnteresl and tiscaI charges

Capital outlay

TotaI expenditures

Excess oF revenues over (under)

expendi[ures

oTHER FTNANCTNC SOURCES (USES)

Long-[erm debL issued
Premium on debl issued

Transters in
TransFers ouI

TotaI olher Financing sources (uses)

Nel change in tund batances

Fund balances -January I

$ 84s,411
647,342

70,603
43,7 46
4,493

s 2,169,933
703,731

70,603
43,7 46

245,429
9,433

5 4s3,588 5 667,234 S

1,943
203,700

54,446

59,094 IJ 706

240,936
9,433

10,153 82 953

1,670,689 453,588 682,883

3?.,451

518,668 3, 325,828

483,395
1,077,650

245,206
7,500

83,786
602

483,395
1,077,650

422,451
7,500

502,790
33,0s3

358,147
66,239

57 4,7 42
21,643

177,245_

419,004

36,354

o?, aao

124,236
795,989795 989

1,898,139 424,386 628,836 1,428,592 4,379,953

(227,4so) 29 202 54,047 (eog ,e24) (1 ,0s4,1 2s)

150,653 63,000

1,405,000
35,684

1,405,000
3s,684

213,653
(63,000)(63 ,000)

150 653 63 000 1,377,684 1,591,337

(7 6,7e7)

1,453,790

29,202

476

117,047

806,436

467,760

286,359

537,212

2,636,061

Fund balances - December 31 lJ-376,ee3_

The notes to the basic financiol statements are an integral part of this statement.

s 118.678 s 923.483 s 754.119

8

_5_3_113.U3_



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OI7

20L7

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net change in fund batances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported For governmenlaI activities in [he statemenL of activilies
are difFerent because:

CovernmenlaI Funds reporl capiLaI oullays as expenditures. However, in

the sLatement oF aclivilies [he cost of lhose assets is altocaled over their
estimated usetu[ lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capitatassels reported as capitaI outtay in governmentaI Fund sla[ements
Deprecialion expense reported in the s[atement oF activilies

CovernmentaI Funds do not presenI revenues thal are noI avaitabte lo pay

currenl ob[igations. ln contrast, such revenues are reported in the staLemenl
of aclivities when earned.

Debl issued provides current tinanciaI resoutces Lo governmentaI funds, but
issuing debl increases [ong-term [iabitities in the sta[ement of net posiLion.

RepaymenI of bond principaI is an expendilure in the governmentaI tunds, bul
the repaymenI reduces [ong-term liabilities in the statement oF net position.

Long-term debt issued
PrincipaI repaid

Some expenses reporled in Ehe statemenl oF activities do nol require the
use of currenl tinancial resources and theretore are nol reporled as

expendilures in the governmentaI tunds:
Accrued interesl on long-term debt
Compensated absences
Nel pension tiabitity
DeFerred outttows oF resoulces retated to pensions

DeFerred inttows of resources relabed to pensions

Change in net posibion of governmentaI activities as reported in Lhe

statement oF acLivities (see pages 4 - 5)

The notes to the basic financiol stotements ore an integrol part of this stotement.

S s37,212

777,970
(334,162)

(2e,202)

(1,40s,000)
932,889

(27,444)
50,627
57,855

(1ez,s7o)
60,034

s 428.209

9



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

Budget

Variance
Final Budget -

P0sitive
(ttegative)0rig¡nal Final Actual

REVENUES
Taxes
lnLergovernmentaI
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeils
Pubtic charges tor services
Miscetlaneous

TotaI revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
CeneraI government
Pubtic satety
Pubtic works
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Conservalion and devetopmenI

TotaI expendi[ures

Excess oF revenues over (under)

expendiLures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in

Net change in tund balance

Fund balance - January 1

851,341 $

634,501
68,020
55,500

3,378
23,s00

851,341 5

634,501
68,020
55,500

3,378

845,411 5

647,342
70,603
43,7 46
4,493

59,094

(s,e3o)
12,841

2,s83
(11 ,7 s4)

1 ,115
?q qq¿23

636 240 1,636,240 670 689 34,449

581

827 534 1,8 27.534 B9B 139 (70,60s)

(1e1,294) (1e1,2e4) (227,4s0) (36,1s6)

191,294 (40,641)

$

345,832
1,100,141

285,543
9,000

85,437

345,832
1,100,141

285,543
9,000

85,437
1,581

483,395
1,077,650

245,206
7,500

83,786
602

(137,s63)
22,491
40,337

1,500
1,651

979

191 294

790 1,

150,653

(7 6,7e7)

1,453,790

(7 6,7e7)

453 790

Fund balance - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are on integral part of this statement.

_5_L153,7e0_ s 1.453.790 s 1.376.993 j_JtstztI

10



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 3I,2OL7

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and inveslments
Receivables

CusLomer accoun[s

To[aI current assels

Noncurrent assets

Reslric[ed assels

Cash and investments

OLher assels
Property hetd For future use

CapilaI assels
Nondepreciabte
Depreciabte

Totat capilaI assets

TolaI assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension relaled amounls

The notes to the basic finoncial stotements are on integral part of this stotement.

Vrrater and
sel,úer Util

I 1,622,003

123,967

745 970

569 28s

290.488

291,128
11 087 644

11 378 772

13.984,515

78,108

11



Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

l^Jater and
sewer utility

LIABILITIES
Current [iabililies

Accounls payable

Accrued and other current tiabitities
Accrued interesl
Current portion oF long-term debl

TolaI current [iabilities

Long-term obligations, less currenl portion
CeneraI obtigation debt
Revenue bonds
Compensaled absences
Nel pension tiabitity

To[a[ long-term liabitities

Tota[ [iabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension retated amounts

NET POSITION
NeI investment in capitaI asse[s

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total nel position

The notes to the basic financiol stotements are an integral part of this statement.

s 6,948
6,581

3,797
250,703

268 029

485,000
343,235

311
10,209

838,755

1,106,784

32,10s

10,299,834
569,285

2,054,615

s 12.923.734
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED I]ECEMBER 3L,2DL7

Water and
Sewer Util¡ty

OPERATING REVENUES

Water service
Sewer service

TotaI operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operation and main[enance
Depreciation

TotaI operaling expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

lnterest income
lnteresl and tiscaI charges

Io[aI nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (beFore [ransfers

Transters oul

Change in net position

Net posiLion - January 1

Net position - December 31

The notes to the basic financiol statements are an integrol part of th¡s stotement.

$ 645,500
824,025

1 ,469,525

590,567
462,175

1 ,052,7 42

416,783

10,269
(44,221\

(33,9s2)

382,831

(1s0,6s3)

232,178

12,691,556

12.923.734
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF GASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

water and
sewer utility

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received trom customers
Cash paid For emptoyee wages and beneFits
Cash paid to supptiers
Nel cash provided by operating

acLiviLies

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transter ouL

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term debt issued
Acquisition oF capitaI assets

Repayment of advance trom other Funds

Principatpaid on long-[erm debI
lnLeres[ paid on [ong-term debl
Net cash used by capiLal

and related tinancing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest received

Change in cash and cash equivalenEs

Cash and cash equivalenLs - January 1

Cash and cash equivatents - December 31

The notes to the basic finoncial statements ore on integrol part of this statement.

5 1,480,037
(223,003)
(3s1,073)

905 961

(150,6s3)

430,000
(7e,640)
542,529

(1,2e3,21e)
(49,16s)

(44e,4es)

15,344

321,157

1,870,131

5 2,191.288
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L.20L7

water and
sewer utility

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATINC ACTIVITIES
OperaLing income
Adjuslmenls to reconcite operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Change in tiabitity (assel) and deFerred

outtlows and inFlows of resources
Pension

Change in operating assets and [iabitities
Customer accounls
Due trom olher tunds
Accounts payab[e

Accrued and oLher currenl [iabitities
CompensaLed absences

Net cash provided by operating aclivities

Reconcitialion of cash and cash equivatents
!o the statement of net position

Cash and cash equivalents in current assets

Cash and cash equivalents in restricted assels

Total cash and cash equivatents

Noncash capitaI and ielated tinancing activities
None

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this stotement.

5 416,783

462,17 5

15,856

10,512
7,505

(2,772)
(3,s76)

ß22)
s 905.961

) 1,622,003
569,285

I 2-1_Z!,289_

15



V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGN¡FICANT ACCOUNTING POL¡C¡ES

The basic financiatst¿tements oF lhe Vittage oF Marsha[[, Wisconsin (the "Vittage"), have been prepared in conFormity

wilh accounting principles generatty accepled in lhe United States of America (GAAP) as applied lo governmenl unils.

The CovernmentatAccounLing Standards Bo¿rd (CASB) is lhe accepled slandard-sel[ing body For es[abtishing

governmenlalaccounting and FinanciaI reporting principles. The signiFicanl accounLing principles and poticies utitized by

the Village are described below:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The Vitlage is a municipat corporation governed by an etecled seven member board. ln accordance with CAAP, lhe basic

FinanciaI sLaLemen[s are required Lo inctude the Vittage and any separate component unils th¿[ have a signiFicanl

operalionaI or FinanciaI relationship with the Village. The Viltage has identiFied the Following component uniL LhaL is

required Lo be included in the basic tinanciatstatemen[s in accordance wi[h stand¿rds eslablished by CASB Sta[ement
No. 61.

CommuniLy Developmen! AuLhority
The governmenl-wide Financial sLatements inctude the Communi[y Development Authorily ("CDA") as a componenL

unil. The CDA is a tegatty separate organizalion. The board oF [he CDA is appointed by the vittage board. Wisconsin

Statules provide tor circumslances whereby the Viltage can impose its wit[ on lhe CDA, and also creale a poLenLial

Financial beneFil Lo or burden on lhe Vi[[age. As a componenl unit, [he CDA's FinanciatsLaLements have been presented

as a discreLe column in the governmenl-wide Fin¿nci¿[ slalemenLs. The intorma[ion presenled is tor the Fiscatyear

ended December 31 ,2017. The CDA does nol issue separale tinanciaIslatements.

B. JOINT VENTURES

Dane County E.M.S. District No. 14

The Village oF Marsha[tand Townships oF Medina, York and Sun Prairie jointly operate the localAmbutance Dislric[,

which is called the Dane CounLy EMS District No. 14. The communiLies share in the operation oF the Dis[ricl based on

populalion. The governing body is called the EMS Commission and is made up of cilizens trom each community. The

Vittage of Marsha[[ representatives ðre appointed by the vi[[age presidenl. The governing body has auLhority to adopL

ils own budget and control the Financialattairs oF [he dislric[. The overlying communities approve the annuaI budget.

The Village made a paymen[ Lo the District in 2017 oF S1 13,983. The Vittage betieves that the Dis[ricl willcontinue Lo

provide services in the tulure al similar rates.

FinanciaI inForm¿tion oF Lhe Districl as oF December 31 ,7017 is availabte direclly From [he District's ottice.

The Vitlage does nol have an equiLy interest in [he localambulance district.

Marshal[ Fire Deparbmen!
The Vi[[age oF Marshat[ and Towns oF York and Medin¿ jointty parlicipale in the locaI tire disLrict, which is catted the

Marshal[ Fire Deparlmenl. The governing body is comprised oF the Village of Marsha[[ ¿nd Towns oF York and Medina

board members. The governing body has authority Lo adopt its own budget and con[ro[ and tinanciaI aFFairs oF the
Disfrict. The Vitlage made a payment lotaling 554,847 to the dislrict For 2017. The Vitlage believes that the District wi[[

continue to provide services in lhe Fulure at similar ra[es.

Financial inFormation oF lhe Dislrict ¿s oF December 31 ,2017 is availabte direclly From lhe DistricL's oFFice.

The Vittage does nol have an equi[y interesl in lhe [oca[ Fire districl.
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3I,2OL7

Emergency Services Buitding

Construclion was compleled in 2002 on a joinL emergency services buitding. This buitding houses both Fire and EMS.

Ownership oF the building is sptit 66% tire and 44o/o EMS, respecLively. The capital costs were allocated based on lhe
percenlages outlined above For the dis[ricts.

C. GOVERNMENT.WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide tinanciaI slatements (i.e., the sl¿temenl oF net position and Lhe sLaLemenL of acLivities) report
intormation on ¿t[ oF lhe nonFiduciary ac[ivities oF the Viltage. For Lhe mosL part, the ettect of inlerfund acLivi[y has

been removed trom lhese s[a[emenLs. Covern mentol activìties, which are primarity supporled by taxes and

inLergovernmenlaI revenues, are reporled separately From óusrness-type octivities, which rely Lo a signiticanL exLenL on

Fees and charges For services.

The sta[emenL of aclivilies demonsLraLes Lhe degree [o which lhe direcl expenses oF a given Function are oFFset by

progtêm revenues. Directexpensesare those [halare ctearly idenliFiablewith a specitic funcLion orsegmen[. Progrom

revenues inctude 1)charges Lo customers orapplicanlswho purchase, use, oTdirec[ly benetit From goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given tunc[ion or segmenl and 2) gran[s and contributions lhat are restricted [o mee[ing lhe
operalionaI or capitaI requirements oF a parlicular Function. Taxes and o[her items nol properly inctuded among
progrêm revenues are reporled inslead as general revenues.

Separate tinancialstaLements are provided For governmentaI tunds and proprielary Funds. CovernmentaI Funds inctude
genera[, speciaI revenue, debl service and capital projec[s funds. Proprietary tunds include an enterprise Fund. The

Vittage has no in[ernalservice tunds. Major individual governmenLaI Funds and major individual enlerprise tunds are

repor[ed as separate cotumns in the Fund FinancialsLaLements.

The Vi[[age reporls lhe Fottowing major governmentaI tunds:

GeneraI Fund

This is the Village's primary operaling Fund. lt accounLs for a[[ FinanciaI resources oF lhe generalgovernment, excep[
[hose accounLed For in anolher Fund.

Debt Service Fund

This tund accounts For lhe resources accumulaled and paymenLs made tor principaland in[erest on long-term general

ob[igalion debl oF governmenI tunds.

Tax lncremenLa[ District No. 1 Capitat Projects Fund

This tund is used lo accounL tor the project plan cosls oF lhe Viltage's Tax lncremental Districl No. '1

The Village reports lhe Fottowing major enterprise Fund:

Water and Sewer ULitity Fund

This Fund accounts tor the opera[ions oF lhe Village's water and sewer utili[ies.
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The governmenl-wide tinanciaI sLatemenls are reported using [he economic resources mezsuremenf þcus and the

occruol bosis of occounting, as are lhe proprie[ary Fund FinanciaIs[¿temenls. Revenues are recorded when earned and

expenses are recorded when a tiabitity is incurred, regardtess of the timing of relaled cash ttows. Proper[y L¿xes ¿re

recognized as revenues in lhe year for which Lhey are levied. Cranls and simi[ar ilems are recognized ðs revenues ês

soon ðs attetigibitity requiremenLs imposed by the provider have been met.

Covernmen[aI FundtinanciatslatemenLsarereporLedusing[he currentfinanciolresourcesmeosurementlocusandlhe

modified occruo! basìs of occounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are bolh measurab[e and avai[ab[e.

Revenues are considered to be avoiloblewl¡en Lhey ¿re cotlec[ible wi[hin the current period or soon enough [hereaFter

to pay tiabitilies of the current period. For [his purpose, the Viltage considers revenues lo be avaitabte it they are

cotlecled within 60 days of the end of the currenL fiscaI period. Expenditures genera[[y are recorded when a tiabitity is

incurred, as under accruaI accounting. However, debl service expendiLures, as we[[ as expendilures related lo

compensaled absences and ctaims and judgments, aTe recorded on[y when payment is due.

Revenues susceptible lo accruaI include in[ergovernmen[aI granls, intergovernmenLaI charges For services, pub[ic

charges for services and inleresL. Other revenues such as licenses and permits, Fines and ForFeiLs and miscettaneous

revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurabte and available.

As a generaI rute the eFFecl oF inlertund acliviLy has been etimina[ed trom Lhe government-wide Financiatstalements.

Exceplions to lhis generaI rule are paymenLs-in-tieu oF Laxes and other charges beLween the Vitlage's water and seweT

tuncLions and various other tunctions oF the Vitlage. Etiminalion of lhese charges woutd distor[ [he direct costs and

program revenues reported For the various FuncLions concerned.

Amounfs reporLed as progrom revenues inctude 1) charges to customers or applicanls For goods, setvices, or priviteges

provided, and Fees and Fines, 2) operaling granls and con[ributions, and 3) capitatgrants and contribulions. lnLernatly

dedicafed resources are reporled as generol revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, generaI Tevenues

include a[[ taxes.

Proprie[ary f unds disling uish operoting Tevenues and expenses From nonoperoting items. Operatìng revenues and

expenses generalty resu[l From providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection wilh a proprielary

tund's principalongoing operations. The principaIoperating revenues of the Vittage's proprielary tunds are charges to

cuslomers For services. Operating expenses tor proprielary Funds include the cosLs oF services, adminislrative expenses,

and depreciation on capilaI assets. A[[ revenues and expenses not meeting this detinition are reporLed as nonoperaling

Tevenues and expenses.

When both restricled and unrestricted resources ¿re available For use, it is the Viltage's policy to use restricled

resources tirsl, then unresLricted resouTces, as lhey are needed.

E. ASSETS, L|ABtLtTtES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/TNFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR FUND BALANCE

1. Cash and lnvestments
Cash and investments are combined in the FinanciaIslalements. Cash deposits consist of dem¿nd and time deposits

with tinanciaI inslituLions and are carried aL cos[. lnvesLmenls are stated aI Fair vatue. F¿ir value is the price thal
woutd be received to se[[ an asse[ in an orderty transaction between markel parlicipanls at Lhe measurement dale.

For purposes oF the slatement oF cash flows, attcash deposils and highty liquid inveslmenls (inctuding restricted

assels) with a malurity of three months or less from date of acquisilion are considered to be cash equivalents.
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

2. Property Taxes and Special Charges/Receivabte

ProperLy taxes and speciaI charges consis! of Laxes on reaI es[ate and personaI properly and user charges assessed

agains[ Village properties. They are [evied during December oF [he prior year and become an enForceable lìen on

properly Lhe tottowing January '1. Property taxes are payable in various oplions depending on [he Lype and amoun[.

Personal property taxes and speciaI charges are payable on or betore January 31 in Futl. Rea[ esLate taxes are

payable in tutt by January 31 or in lwo equa[ instaltments on or belore January 31 and July 31. Reatestate laxes not
paid by January 31 are purchased by the County as part oF Lhe March tax se[tlement. Delinquent personal property

[axes remain lhe collection responsibility of the Village. SpeciaIcharges noI paid by January 31 are he[d in trust by

the Counly and remitted to the Viltage, inctuding inLerest, when collec[ed by the County.

ln addilion to i[s [evy, the Village also levies and cotlects laxes For the Marsha[[ Pub[ic SchooI Dis[ricl, Dane CounLy,

Madison Area TechnicaI College and [he State of Wisconsin.

3. AccounEs Receivabte

Accounls receivabte ¿re recorded at gross amounls wilh uncol,lectib[e amounls recognized under Lhe direcl write-

otf melhod. No a[[owance For uncotlec[ible ¿ccounts has been provided since iL is believed thal lhe amounL of such

attowance woutd not be materiaI to [he basic Financialstatemenls.

4. SpeciaI Assessments

AssessmenLs against properLy owners For public improvements are generatty not subjecl lo Fu[[ seLLtement in [he

year levied. Specialôssessmenls are placed on tax rotts on an inslatlment basis. Revenue trom specialassessmen[s

recorded in governmenLaI tunds is recognized as cotteclions are made or as currenE inslaltmenls are placed on lax

roLls. (lnstatlmenLs ptaced on lhe 2017 lax rotl are recognized ès Tevenue in 2018.) SpeciaI assessments are subject

to colleclion procedures.

5. lntertund Receivables and Payables

During lhe course of operaLions, numerous transaclions occur beLween individuaI tunds For goods provided or

services rendered. These receivabtes and payables are cl¿ssiFied as "due From other Funds" and "due to other Funds"

in the Fund tinancialsLaLemenls. Noncurrent porlions oF the inlerfund receivabtes For Lhe governmen[aI Funds are

reporled ¿s "advances to olher tunds" and are oFtsel by nonspendable Fund balance since lhey do nol cons[ilule
expendab[e avaitabte FinanciaI resources and theretore are not avaitabte tor approprialion.

The amounL reporled on the s[alement oF net position For inEernat balances represenls the residuaI batance

ouls[anding belween the governmen[aI and business-type aclivities.

6. Prepaid ltems

Paymenls made to vendors that wi[[ beneFil periods beyond [he end oF the cur¡enI tiscatyear are recorded as

prepaid iLems and are accounled For on Lhe consump[ion method.

Prepaid i[ems of governmenLaI tunds in lhe Fund tinanciaI slatemenls are oFtset by nonspendable Fund ba[¿nce [o

indicate that they do not represenI spendabte av¿ilable tinanciaI resources.
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3I,2OL7

7. Capitat Assets

Capitalassels, which include properly, ptant, equipmen[, and infrasLructure ðsseLs, are reported in lhe applicabte

government¿tor business-[ype activilies cotumns in [he governmen[-wide tinancialstalements. Capital asse[s are

defined by the Vittage as assets wilh an initia[, individual cosl oF more than 55,000 For general capilal assets and

$15,000 For intrastructure assets, and an estimated useFul [iFe in excess oF a year. Such assels are recorded al

historicatcosL or eslimated historicaIcost iF purchased or consLructed. Dona[ed capilaIassels are recorded aI

es[ima[ed acquisition vatue al the date oF donation.

The cosls oF normal mainlenance and repairs [hal do not add [o the value oF the asset or materiatly exlend asse[

lives are nol capitalized.

Capitat ðssets of the Vittage are depreciated using Lhe straight-tine me[hod over the toltowing eslimaLed usetuI

lives:

Covernmental
Acbivilies

Business- ty pe

Activities
Assets Y EATS

Land improvemenls
Buit dings a nd improvements
Machinery a nd equipmen[
I nfra s truc[ure

15- 30
15- 75
3- 15

15- 60

25- 50
3-'10

25 - 100

8. Property Held For Future Use

Property hetd For Fulure use TepTesen[s property purchased by the wa[er uLili[y For Fu[ure use of a water lower. ln

addition, lhe sewer utitily main[ains proper[y For tuture use Following [he reliremenl of Lhe old w¿s[ewater

lreatmenI planl.

9. Capitat Project Sinking Fund

The utitity has se[ up a capitaI projecl sinking Fund which is used to accumutate unresLricted payments received

trom TlF. The inlenl is the tunds witt be used For tuture capital projects and/or debl service.

10. AsseLs Hetd for Resate

Assets hetd For resale consists oF [and and improvemen[s and is valued al cosl oF acquisition, demolition, and site

improvements. ProperLies include both [and intended For resale and [and designaled as a public area. Assets hetd

For resa[e is recorded al lower of cosl or markel vatue.

11. Compensaled Absences

It is the Vittage's policy Lo permil employees to accumulate earned bul unused v¿calion and sick leave beneFiLs in

accordance wilh emptoyee handbook poticies and/or bargaining unil agreements. Atlvacation and sick leave is

accrued when incurred in lhe government-wide and proprietary Fund FinanciatsLaLemen[s. A tiabitity tor these

amounls is reporled in Lhe governmenlal Funds in the Fund tinanciats[atemenls onty iF they have malured, For

example, as a resutt of emptoyee resignaLions and relirements.
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3'J.,2OL7

12. DeFerred OutFtows/lnttows oF Resources

Deferred oulFlows of resources are a consumplion oF net position by the government lha[ is appticable [o a tuture
reporling period. Deterred inFtows oF resources are an acquisiLion of nel position by the governmenl that is

applicab[e [o a FuLure reporting period. The recognilion oF those outFlows and inFlows as expenses or expendiLures

and revenues are deterred until Lhe FuLure periods lo which the oulFlows and intlows are applicabte.

13. Long-EermObligations
ln [he governmenl-wide tinanciatslatemenLs, and proprietary tunds in the Fund FinanciatslaLements, long-lerm

debI and other [ong-lerm obligations are reported as liabilities in the appticabte governmenlaI aclivities, business-

type activilies, or proprielary Fund slalement of nel position. Bond premiums ¿nd discounts are deferred and

amorLized over [he [iFe of the bonds. Bonds payabte are reporled net oF the appticable bond premium or discounl.

Bond issuance cosLs are expensed as incurred.

ln the tund tinancials[aLements, governmenLaI Funds recognize bond premiums and discounLs, as we[[ as bond

issuance cosls, during lhe currenl period. The tace amounL of debt issued is reporled as other Financing sources.

Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other Financing sources white discounts on debl issuances aTe

reported as other tinancing uses. lssuance cosls, whether or noI withhetd From Lhe aclualdebI proceeds received,

are reporled as debl service expenditures.

14. Pensions

For purposes of measuring Lhe net pension tiabitity (asset), deFerred ouLFlows oF resources and deFerred intlows oF

resources retaLed to pensions, and pension expense, intormalion about Lhe tiduciary nel position oF the Wisconsin

RetiremenL Syslem (WRS) and additions to/deductions trom WRS' Fiduciary nel posi[ion have been delermined on

lhe same basis as [hey are reported by WRS. For lhis purpose, benetil paymenls (inctuding retunds oF employee

conlributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with Lhe beneFil [erms. lnvestmenLs are

reporled al tair vatue.

15. Fund Equity
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Fund balance oF governmentaI Funds is reported in various caLegories based on lhe naLure of any [imitalions

requiring [he use of resources tor specitic purposes. The to[[owing classiFicalions describe lhe retalive s[renglh ot
the spending cons[raints ptaced on lhe purposes tor which Tesources can be used:

Þ Nonspendable fund balance. Amounls that ¿re not in spendabte torm (such as inventory, prepaid ilems, or

[ong-term receivables) or are lega[y or conLrac[uatty required lo remain inlact.

) Restricted tund balance. Amoun[s lhaL are conslrained tor specitìc purposes by exlernal par[ies (such as

grantor or bondhotders), lhrough consli[ulionaI provisions, or by enabting legislation.

Þ Committed Fund balance. Amounts Lhat are constrained For speciFic purposes by acLion of the Vi[[age Board.

These constrainLs can onty be removed or changed by the Viltage Board using the same aclion lhal was used to

creale lhem.

Þ Assigned fund batance. Amounts thaL are conslrained For specitic purposes by action of Village management.

The Village Board has aulhorized Lhe Adminislrator-Treasurer to assign tund balance. Residuatamounts in any

governmenlaI Fund, other th¿n the Ceneral Fund, are also reporled as assigned.

Þ Unassigned fund balance. AmounLs lhal are available tor any purpose. Positive unassigned amounls are only

reporled in [he CeneraI Fund.
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

The Vi[[age considers restricted amounls to be spent tirst when bolh reslric[ed and unresLricLed tund balance is

¿vailabte untess lhere are legaI documents / conLracts thal prohibit doing lhis, such as in granL agreements

requiring dollar tor dottar spending. Addilionat[y, the Vi[[age would Firsl use commit[ed, then assigned and lastly

unassigned amounLs oF unres[ricted Fund balance when expenditures are made.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Statements

Equity is cl¿ssiFied as nel posilion and displayed in [hree componenLs:

Þ Net investment in capital assets. Amounl oF capitaI asseLs, net of accumulaled deprecialion, and capital

related deFerred outtlows of resources Less oulstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, noles, or oLher

borrowings that are atlribulabte lo lhe acquisiLion, construction, or improvement of Lhose asseLs and any

capilaI relaled deferred inFlows oF resources.

> Restricted net position. Amounl of net position LhaL is subject to reslriclions thal are imposed by 1) exLernaI

gtoups, such as credilors, grantors, contribulors or laws or regulaLions of other governments or 2) law lhrough
conslitution¿ [ provisions or enabling legis[alion.

Þ Unrestricted net position. Net position lhal is neither ctassilied as restricled nor as neI inves[ment in capitaI

assets.

F. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparalion of financiaI slatements in conformity with accounling principtes generatty accepled in [he Uni[ed

Slates of America requires management to make es[imaLes and assumplions lhal aFFect lhe amounls reporled in Lhe

financiatsEalemenls and accompanying no[es. AcLuaI results coutd diFFer From lhose eslimates.

G. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounls in lhe prior year financiatslatements have been rectassitied lo conForm with lhe presentation in the
current year Financiatslatements wi[h no change in previousty reported nel position, changes in nel posilion, tund

balance or changes in Fund balance.
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NOTE 2: STEInJARDSHIP AND COMPL¡ANCE

A. BUDCETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Vi[[age totlows [hese procedures in estabtishing lhe budgetary da[a retlected in the basic financiatstalemen[s:

1. During October, Village mônagement submits to the Vitlage Board a proposed operating budget tor Lhe catendar
yeðr commencing [he Following January 1. The operating budget inctudes proposed expendilures and the means oF

Financing them. Atter submission to the governing body, public hearings are held to ob[¿in laxpayer comments.

Fotlowing the pubtic hearings, the proposed budgel, inctuding ¿uthorized addiLions and delelions, is legalty

enacLed by Vittage Board ¿ction.

2. BudgeLs are adopted on a basis consislenl with accounling principles generatty accepted in the Uni[ed Slates ot
America tor atlgovernmen[aI Funds. Budget is delined as [he origina[[y approved budget ptus or minus approved

amendmenls. lndividuaIamendments lhroughout lhe year were not maleriaI in reta[ion to lhe originaI budgel.
BudgeI appropriations not expended during the year are closed lo Fund batance untess au[horized by the
governing body to be torw¿rded in[o the succeeding year's budget.

3. During lhe year, tormaI budgetary integraLion is emptoyed as a m¿nðgement controIdevice for the governmental

Funds adopling a budget.

4. Expendi[ures may not exceed appropriaLions provided in det¿iled budget accounts m¿inlained tor each activity or
deparlmenI of the Vittage. Amendments lo Lhe budget during [he year require initiaI approvaI by managemenl and

are subsequently authorized by the Vitlage Board.

5. Encumbrance accounling is noL used by theVitlage to record commitmen[s rel¿ted lo unpertormed contrac[s tor
goods or services.

The Vitlage did not have any maleriatviolalion oF legaI or contractuaI provisions For Lhe tiscalyear ended December 31,

2017.

B. DEFtCtT FUND EQUTTY

The Fottowing Funds had deFicit f und balance as oF December 31,2017

Fund
DeFiciI Fund

Batance
Campg round 5 14,700

The Viltage anticipales Funding Lhe above deficits trom tuture revenues oF the Fund.

C. PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT

Wisconsin sLaLe statules provide For a limit on the proper[y Lax levies For attWisconsin cities, vitlages, towns and

counties. For lhe 201 7 and 2018 budget years, Wisconsin Slalules timit the incre¿se in lhe maximum attowable tax levy

lo lhe change in the Vitlage's January 1 equalized value as a resutt of net new construclion. The actual [imit For lhe
Vitlage For the 2017 budget was 0.39%. The actual limit For the Vittage For lhe 2018 budget was 0.52%. Deb[ service tor
debt aulhorized atter Juty 1, 2005 is exempt From lhe levy limit. ln addilion, Wisconsin s[atu[es a[[ow lhe limit to be

adjusted for the increase in debt service authorized prior to Juty 1, 2005 and in cerlain other siLuations.
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NOTE 3: DETA¡LED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Vitlage maintains various c¿sh and investmenl accoun[s, inctuding pooted Funds that are available For use by at[

Funds. Each Fund's porlion oF lhese accounls is disptayed on lhe FinanciaIslalemen[s as "Cash ¿nd investmenLs".

lnvested cash consists oF deposi[s and investments lh¿t are res[ricled by Wisconsin Stalules [o the following:

Time deposiLs; repurchase agreements; securilies issued by Federa[, slate and locaI governmentalenti[ies;

stalutority authorized commerciaI paper and corporaLe securities; and Lhe Wisconsin locaIgovernment

investmenl poot.

The carrying amount oF the Vitlage's cash and investmen[s LoLated 58,061 ,238 on December 31 ,2017 as summarized

below:

Petty cash and cash on hand
Deposits wilh tinanciaI institutions
lnves[ments

US agencies
NegoliabI e certiticates of deposit

s 955
6,136,307

187,623
1,736,353

-fBP"6r76-

s 7,350,890
569,285

Reconciliation to the basic FinanciaI statemenLs:

Covernment-wide SlatemenL of Net Position
Primary Covernment

Cash and investmenLs
ReslricLed cash and investmenls

Component Unit
Cash and investmenls 141,063

s 8,061,238

Fair Vatue Measurements

The Vittage categorizes iLs tair value measurements within the Fair value hierarchy established by generatty accepled

accounLing principtes. The hierarchy is based on [he valua[ion inputs used lo measure lhe tair v¿tue oF Lhe assel. Level 1

inputs are quoted prices in active markeLs For idenlicaI assets; Level 2 inpuls are signiticanl observable inpuls; Level 3

inpuls are signiFicant unobservabte inputs. The Vi[[age has lhe Fotlowing tair v¿tue meêsurements as oF December 31,

2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using:
Levet 'l Levet z LEVCI J

lnvesLments
FederaI National Mortgage Association
Negotia ble certiticaLes of deposit

s 5 1,923,976 s

Deposits and investments of lhe Viltage are subjecL to various risks. Presented below is a discussion oF the Viltage's

deposits and investmenls and lhe retaled risks.

s s 187,623 S

1,736,353
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CustodiaI Credit Risk

CusLodiaI credil risk tor deposits is the risk [h¿1, in the event oF [he F¿ilure of a deposiLory tinanciaI insli[ution, a

government will not be able to Tecover its deposits or witl not be abte [o recover coltaleratsecurities thaI are in Lhe

possession of an outside parly. The cus[odia[ credil risk for investments is lhe risk lhat, in the evenL of the failure of the

coun[erparty (e.g., broker-deater) [o a trans¿ction, a governmenl wi[[ nol be ¿ble Lo Tecover the value of ils investment

or co[[ateratsecurilies thaL are in the possession oF another parly. Wisconsin sLaLuLes require repurchase agreements lo
be tutly coltaler¿tized by bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the Federal government or ils instrumenlatilies.

The Vittage does noL have an addilionaI cusLodiaIcredil policy.

DeposiLs with financi¿[ instiluLions wi[hin [he S[ale of Wisconsin are insured by [he FederaI Deposit lnsurance

Corporation (FDIC) in the amounl of $250,000 tor the combined amount oF a[[ lime and savings deposiLs and S250,000
For interesL-bearing ¿nd noninLerest-bearing demand deposits per oFFicialcus[odian per insured deposiLory institu[ion.

Deposi[s with Financial instiLulions loc¿ted oulside Lhe Sta[e oF Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in [he amounl oF

5250,000 For lhe combined amounl oF at[ deposit accounls per otticial custodian per deposilory inslilu[ion. Deposils

wilh credit unions are insured by the Na[ional Credil Union Share lnsurance Fund (NCUSIF) in the amount oF 5250,000
per crediL union member. Also, lhe Sl¿te oF Wisconsin has ¿ St¿te Cuaranlee Fund which provides a maximum oF

5400,000 per public deposilory above the ¿moun[ provided by an agency oF the U.S. CovernmenL. However, due to the

relaLivety sma[[ size oF lhe SLate Cuaranlee Fund in retation lo the Fund's to[atcoverage, tot¿[ recovery of insured

losses may not be avaitable. This coverage has been considered in determining custodiatcrediI risk.

As of December 31 , 201 7, S5,036 ,947 of the Village's deposils with FinanciaI inslitulions were in excess of Feder¿[ and

sfate deposilory insurance [imils. 51,765,255 was cottateralized with securities hetd by the ptedging FinancialinstiLution

or i[s [rus[ department or agenL by not in the Vittage's nême.

Credit Risk

Generatty, crediI risk is the risk that an issuer oF an investment witI not tutfitt its obligation lo the holder of [he

inves[ment. This is measured by the assignment oF a raLing by a nationatty recognized stalislicaI rating organiza[ion.

Wisconsin s[atutes [imil inveslment in securiLies to the lop [wo ratings assigned by nationa[[y recognized slatistical

raling organizaLions. Presenled betow is the actuaI ra[ing as of the year-end For each investmenl type.

lnvestmenl Type Amount

Exempt
trom

Disclosure AAA
Not

Rated
Federðt Nat¡onðt Morlgage Assocratton
Negotia bI e certitica tes of deposiI
To[als

Investment Ty pe

5 187,623
1,736,353

s 187,623 55 5
1,736,353

s 1,923,976 S 5 187,623 s 1,736,3s35

lnlerest Rate Risk

lnleresl r¿[e risk is lhe risk lhat changes in markel interesl rates witl adversely aFFec[ lhe Fair vatue of an investment.

Cenera[[y, Lhe longer the maturiLy of an inveslment, Lhe greater lhe sensitivity oF its Fair vatue lo changes in markel

interest rates. The Vitlage does nol have a Formal inveslmenl policy lhat [imiLs inves[menI ma[urilies as a means oF

managing ils exposure lo tair vatue losses arising From increasing inLerest rates.

lnformation abouI the sensitivily oF lhe Fair values oF the Vittage's investmen[s to markel interest rale ttucluations is

provided by the Following table thal shows Lhe distribulion oF the Viltage's inveslmenls by maturily:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Amount
12 Months

o r Less

13 lo 24

Months

25 to 60

Mo nths

More Than

60 Months

Federal NationaI Mortgage Assoc¡atìon

Negotiab[e certiFìcates oF deposit
Tolals

s 187,623

1,736,3s3
s 187,623

toc cot

> tó3,¿15:

5 5 )
892,921 247,840

5 1,923,976 5 892,921 5 247,840 S
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lnvesLments wiLh Fair Vatues Highty Sensitive to lnterest Rale FtucLuations

The Viltage's inves[ments include lhe Foltowing investmenls lhal are highly sensilive Lo interest rale Ftuctuations (Lo a

greater degree than already indicated in the inFormalion provided above):

Hig hty Sensitive lnveslments
Fair Value

alYear End

Mortgage backed securilies. T hese secur¡l¡es ête sub1ecl Eo ealty
payment in a period of declining interest rates. T he resultant reduction
in expected totaI cash flows afFecls Lhe tair value of these securities
and makes lhe tair values oF lhese securities highty sensitive Lo

changes in inlerest rales. 5 187,623

B. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Resf ricted êssets on Decembe r 31 ,2017 lotaled S569,285 and consisLed of cash and inveslmen[s held For [he Fottowing

purposes:

Funds Amount Purpose

Enterprise Fund
Sewer Reptacement s

The sewer utility estabtished an equipment replacement
accounL to be used For signiticant mechanicat
equipment replacement as required by the

569,285 Wisconsin DepartmenL of NaturaI Resources
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C. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capifalasse[ acLivity lor lhe year ended December 31,2017 was as foltows:

Beg inning
Ba [a nce I ncrea ses Decrea ses

End i ng
Ba Ìa nce

Governmental activities:
Capitat assets, nondeprecia ble:

La nd
Stormw ater detention pond
Construclion in prog ress
Total capila[ ôssets, nondepreciable

Capilat assets, depreciabte:
B uitd ing s

Mêchinery and equipment
St reets
Storm sew ers
Sid ew a tks

Slreet tighting
Library capital ôssets
Sub to ta ts

Less accumulaled deprec¡êt¡on for:
Buitdings
Machinery and equipmenl
Slreets
Slorm sew ers
Sidew atks
Street tigh[ing
Library cap¡ta[ êssets
Subto[ats

5 1,450,578
35,7 11

S 5 5 1,450,578
35,711

51 6,05951 6,059
1,486,289 51 6,059 2,OO2,348

2,974,371
742,249

6,1 06,530
285,214
613,179
752,532
721,162

45,409_

186,079

30,423

33,134

65,410

2,986,646
742,249

6,292,609
285,214
613,179
752,532
686,17 5

12,195,237

30,506
309,927
330,1 55
558,672

261,911

66,761
51,348
84,722

3,355
10,220
37,627
80,1 29 65,410

910,479
602,836

1,587,165
33,861

320,147
367,782
573,391

98,544 1 2,358,604

33,134876,852
551,488
502,443

4,160,O43

To[aI capitaI assets, depreciabte, net 8,035, 1 94

Covernmenlat aclivities cðpitat assets, n"t j:Æ
Less: Cêpital related debt

Net investment in capi[atassets

334,16¿ 98,544 4,J95,66',ì

(72,2s1) 7,962,943

s 443,808 S 9,965,291

1,954,343

s 8,010,948
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Beg inning
Bð lð nce I ncreê ses Decrea ses

End i ng
Ba [a nce

Sewer

Capitat assets, nondepreciabte
Land and tand righls

Capitat assets, being depreciated
Cottect¡on system
Cottecting sy stem pumping
Trealment and disposaI
Cenera I

Subtotats

Less accumulated deprecia lion lor:
Sew er

Tolat cap¡tât asseIs, depreciabte, net

Sew er capi[aI assets, nel

l/ìlbter

Capitat âsse[s, nondepreciable:
Land and tand righls

Capitat asse[s, being depreciaEed
Cottec[ing sy stem
Pumping
Waler trealment
Transmission and distribution
Cenerâ I

Sublotêts

Less accumulaIed deprecialion lor:
Wa ter

To[at cap¡lêt assets, depreciable, nel

Water capi[al assels, nel

Business-ty pe capital ôssets, net

Less: CapilaI related debt

Nel investment in capitaI assets

5 207,490 S ç s 207,490

4, BB6,33B
245,662

6,360,305
340,911

4,886,338
245,662

6,360,305
340,911

11,833,216

5,5 1 6,939

11 ,433, ¿16

295,830 812,7695

6,316,277 (2es,830) 6,020,447

5 6,s23,767 S (295,830) 5 6,227,937

s 83,638 5 s83 638

253,698
920,501

3,809
5,726,596

161,160
79,640 3,545

253,698
920,501

3,809
5,802,69'1

161,160
7,065,764

1,911,862

79,640 3,545 t,141 ,859

4,662166,345 3,545 2,07

7 ,065,7 64 (86,70s) 3,545 5,067,197

57, 149,402 S (86,70s) S 3,s4s 5,1 50,835

s 13,673,169 5 (382,s3s) 5 3,545 11,378,772

1,078,938

s 10,299,834
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Depreciation expense was charged lo Functions of [he Vi[[age as Fo[[ows:

Covernmenta I activilies
Cenerat government
Pubtic satety
Public works
Cutture and recreaLion
Tolal

S

Business- type activ ilies
Water utitity

Add: Depreciation charged to sewer uLiliLy

Change in water ulility accumutated depreciaLion

S

2,257
18,503

17 4,167
139,235
334,162

Sewer uLility
Less: DepreciaLion charged trom water utilily

Change in sewer utility accumulated depreciation

159,348
6,997

5 166,345

302,827
(6,997)

$ 295,830

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

lnLertund receivabtes and payabtes belween individual lunds oF the Vitlage, as reporled in lhe Fund FinanciaI

stafements, as oF December 31, 2017 are detailed below:

S

lntertund
Receivables

lnterFund
PayabI es

Long- term advances
Genera I

Capitat Projects
s 136,722 S

136,722

T ota Is s 136,722 S 136,722

lnLertund transFers tor lhe year ended December 31 ,2017 were as toltows:

T ransFer
Funds ln

T ra nster
Out

Ceneral
Water Utitity
TIF No.1
Capitat ProjecLs
T ota Is

5

150,653

63,000
5 213,653 5 213,653

S '150,653

63,000

150,653

63,000

lntertund transters were made tor Lhe following purposes:

Tax equivalent paymenl made by water utitity to generaI Fund

Fund projecls

29

s 213,653



V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2OI7

I. LONG-TERMOBLIGATIONS

The totlowing is a summary oF changes in long-lerm obligations of the Viltage tor lhe year ended December 31,2017

Beg i nning
Ba Ìa nce I ssued Re[ì red

End i ng
Ba ta nce

Due Wi[hin
One Year

Governmentat activities:

Cenerat Obtigation Debt
Bonds
No tes
State trusI lund [oans
Total GeneraI Obtigalion DebL

Compensaled absences
Gov ernmental activ iIies

Long-[erm ob[igaIions

Business-type activiEies:

GeneraI Obtiga[ion Debt
Bonds
No tes
ToLaI CeneraI Obtigation Debt

Revenue bonds
Compensa[ed absences
Business-ty pe acLiv itìes

Long-term obtigations

5 1,21s,000
1,760,000
2,140,066

5

1,405,000
s 100,000

610,000
222,889

s 1,115,000
2,555,000
1,917 ,177

1 00,000
660,000

1,360,1 35

5

5,1 1 5,066
58,994

'1 ,405,000 93¿,889
50,627

5,58t,1 I t
8,367

¿,1¿0,1 35

5 5,174,060 S 1,40s,000 S 983,s16 S s,ses,544 5 2,120,13s

5 280,000 5 s 70,000 5 210,000 s- 430,000
70,000
8s,000

18U,00U
1,662,157

833

430,000

-Jõ¡',or
70,000

1,223,219
522

640,000
438,938

311

1 55,000
95,703

5 1, 942,990 S 430,000 5 1,293,741 5 1,079,249 5 2s0,703

Total interes[ paid during the year on long-Lerm debt to[aled S135,716.

GeneraI Obtigation Debt
CeneraI obligation debt currenlly oulslanding is delailed as tottows

Date of
lssue

T7ß7Ê
07126/13
0e/0e113
07102114
07 lo2/14
1ol2711s
01/o711s
04lze/16
11 lol 117
11 101 117

Fr nat
Maturily

nTsW
03/1s118
0311sl33
03/01127
03lo1lzo
0311s11e
03/01121
0311s122
11 101127
03101/22

lnLeresI
Rates

OriginaI
lndebtedness

Batance
12131117

2009 State T rusl Fund Loan
20'1 3 State T rust Fund Loan
201 3 State T rusL Fund Loan
201 4 Retunding Bonds
201 4 ReFunding Bonds
201 5 Slate T rust Fund Loan
2015 Promissory Note
201 6 Sla[e T rust Fund Loan
2017 Promissory Note
201 7 Promissory Nole

4.5Yo

2.51o
3.75%

0.6-3.3Yo
2.4Yo

3.0%
0.4-1.85Yo

3.25Yo

2.26-2.50o/o
2.25-3.00yo

s 300,000
102,739
600,000

1,410,000
410,000
120,000

2,7 40,000
2,150,000
1,405,000

430,000

s 78,s00
21,384

540,673
1,1 15,000

21 0,000
82,083

1,150,000
1,194,537
1,405,000

430,000

Total Outstanding GeneraI Obtigation Debt 5 6,227,177
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AnnuaI principaI and interesl maturities of lhe outslanding generaI obligation debt of 56,227 ,177 on December 31,

2017 are detaited betow:

Year Ended CovernmentaI Aclivities Business-Lype Activilies ToLats
December 31, Pflncrpa t lnEeresE Principa t lnterest Pnncrpa r lnEerest

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

2023 - 2027
20zB-2032

2033

s 2]20,135
427,878
457,163
463,232
294,291

1,583,737
196,831

43,910

s 122,821
84,114
7 5,17 5

65,932
56,989

160,378
30,955

1,647

s 155,000
155,000
160,000

85,000
8s,000

s 2,275J35
582,878
617,163
548,232
379,291

1,583,737
196,831

43,910

5 132,716
92,869
80,973
69,332
58,264

160,378
30,955

1,647

Þ 9,895
8,755
5,798
3,400
1,275

s5,587,177 S 598,011 5 640,000 5 29,123 S 6,227,177 S 627,134

For governmentalactivilies, the other long-Lerm liabilities are generðtty Funded by the generaI Fund.

Lega[ Margin for New Deb!
The Vittage's legaI margin For crealion oF additionaIgeneraI obtigation debt on December 31,2017 was $4,552,576 as

Fo[[ows:

Equalized vatuation of the Vittage
StaLutory Iimitation percentage
Ceneral obtigation debl Iimitation, per Section 67.03 oF lhe

W isconsin S[ôtuLes
T olal ou[standing general obligalion debt appticable [o debL Iimi[ation 5

Less: Amounts available For financing general obtigation deb[
Debt service tund

Net ouLstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt IimitaLion
Legal margin For new debt

5 213,221,s00
(x) s%

10,661,075
6,227,177

118,67 8

6,1 08,499
5 4 ,ss2,s7 6

Curren! Retunding

During 2017, the Vittage currentty retunded a waLer system Tevenue bonds issue trom 2007. The Vi[[age issued

$430,000 oF generaI obtigation no[es lo catt [he reFunded debt. This currenL reFunding was undertaken to reduce LolaI

debt service paymenls over the nexL 5 years by 546,808 and to obLain an economic gain (ditterence between the

present vatue oF the debt service payments oF Lhe retunded and reFunding bonds) oF 525,1 85.

Prior-year Deteasance oF Deb!
ln prior years, the Vittage defeased cerLain generaI obligalion and olher bonds by placing Lhe proceeds oF new bonds in

an irrevocabte lrus[ to provide For at[ Fulure debL service payments on lhe old bonds. Accordingly, the lrust account

assets and lhe tiabitity For lhe deteased bonds are nol included in the Village's tinancialslalements. A[ December 31,

2017, 5655,000 of bonds outstanding are considered deFeased. The bonds are c¿llable as Fo[[ows:

Catt Date Amount
sl1/2018
s/1/201e
s1112020

s 205,000
220,000
240,000

s 665,000
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Revenue Bonds

Revenue bonds ouls[anding on December 31 ,2017 [o[aled 5438,938 and were comprised of lhe Fottowing issues:

Date oF Finat ln[erest Originat Balance
lssue Maturity Rates lndebledness 12/31117

T1E47w jTnT 2.640% 51,155,695 5 76,125

sl8l13 sl1l33 1.93Yo 437,499 362,813
1998 Revenue Bonds
20'13 Revenue Bonds

TolaI Oulstanding Revenue Bonds s 438,938

AnnuaI principaland inleresL ma[urilìes of the ou[standing revenue bonds of $438,938 on December 31, 2017 are

detailed below:

Business- ty pe ActivitiesYear Ended
December 31, Pflncrpa t lnEerest lotat

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

2023- 2027
2028-2032

2033

Þ 95,1O3
'19,955

20,340
20,731
21,130

111,911
123,107

26,061

103,504
26,370
26,367
26,363
26,359

131,736
'131,630

26,312

s 438,938 S 59,703 s 498,641

Utility Revenues Ptedged

The Vittage has ptedged Fulure water customeT revenues, net oF speciFied operaling expenses, to repay the wa[er

system revenue bonds. Proceeds trom the bonds provided tinancing tor the construcLion or acquisilion of capilaI asseLs

used wiLh the system. The bonds are payabte sotety From waler cuslomer nel revenues and ate payabte through 2033.

The tofal principal and interesl remaining to be paid on lhe bonds is 5421,512. Principal and inleresl paid for the

currenlyear and tolalcuslomer net revenues were $26,378 and S396,193, respecLivety.

The Vittage has ptedged tuture sewer cuslomeT Tevenues, neI oF speciFied operaling expenses, to repay the sewer

system revenue bonds. Proceeds From the bonds provided tinancing For [he conslruction or acquisition of capitaI assets

used with Lhe syslem. The bonds are payabte sotety From sewer cusLomer net revenues ¿nd are payable through 2018.

The total principaland inlerest remaining to be paid on lhe bonds is 577,129. Principal and inlerest paid For Lhe currenl

year and totatcuslomer nel revenues were 577 ,156 and 5482,765, respectivety.

s 57,801

6,415
6,027
5,632
5,229

19,825
8,523

251
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J. PENSION PLAN

1. Plan Description

The WRS is a cost-sharing, muttiple-emptoyer, detined benetit pension plan. WRS beneti[s and other plan provisions

are established by Chapler 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benetit terms may only be modiFied by the legislature.

The retiremenL sys[em is administered by lhe Wisconsin Deparlment oF Employee Trusl Funds (ETF). The syslem

provides coverêge to att etigibte SLaLe oF Wisconsin, locat government and other pubtic employees. A[[ employees,

initiatty emptoyed by a parlicipating WRS emptoyer on or atter July '1, 201 '1, and expecled lo work aL least 1200

hours a year (BB0 hours For Leachers and school districl educalionaI supporl emptoyees) and expected to be

emptoyed For at [east one year From emptoyee's dale oF hire are eligibte to parlicipate in the WRS.

ETF issues a slandalone Comprehensive AnnuaI FinanciaI Report (CAFR), which can be tound al
h ttp://e tF.wi.9ov/p u b Iica Iio n s/ca Fr. h tm.

For emptoyees beginning participalion on or atLer January 1, 1990, and no longer aclivety employed on or aFler

Apri[ 24, 1998, credi[able service in each of tive years is required for etigibitity For a reLirement annuity. Participants

emptoyed prior lo 1 990 and on or atLer April24,1 998, and prior to Juty 1, 201 '1, are immedialely vesled.

Participan[s who initiatly became WRS etigibte on or atler Juty 1, 201 1, musl have Five years oF crediLable service to
be vesled.

Employees who relire al or aFLer age 65 (54 For protective occupation emptoyees, 62 For elecLed officials and S[ale

execulive participanls) are enlilled lo receive an unreduced reLiremenl beneFit. The FacLors intluencing the benetit
are 1) Finalaverage earnings, 2)years oF crediLable service, and 3) a tormula F¿clor.

FinaIaverage earnings is lhe average of lhe participanL's three highesLyears'earnings. Credilabte service is lhe

credilabte currenl and prior service expressed in years or decimaI equivalents oF partialyears tor which a

participanL receives earnings and makes con[ributions as required. The Formula factor is a stand¿rd percenLage

based on emptoyment calegory.

Employees may reLire al age 55 (50 tor protective occupalion emptoyees) and receive reduced beneFiLs. Emptoyees

terminaling covered emptoyment betore becoming etigibte tor a reliremenL benefit may withdraw their
contributions and torFeit at[ rights to any subsequenI beneFits.

The WRS also provides dealh and disability benetits tor emptoyees.
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2. Post-RetirementAdjustments

The Employee Trusl Funds Board may periodica[[y adjust annui[y paymenls trom Lhe reLirement system based on

annuaI inveslmenI pertormance in accordance wi[h s. 40.27,Wis. Slal. An increase (or decrease) in annuity
payments may resulL when investment gains (losses), [ogether wilh olher ac[uariaI experience tacloTs, creaLe a

surptus (shortFatt) in the reserves, as delermined by lhe syslem's consulting actuary. Annui[y increases are nol
based on cosl of living or olher simitar Factors. For Core annuilies, decreases may be apptied onty Lo previously

gran[ed increases. By [aw, Core annuiLies cannol be reduced [o an ðmounL betow the originat, guaran[eed amounL

(the "Ftoor") set aL reliremen[. The Core and Variable annuily adjustments granted during recenl years are as

fo[[ows:

Year Core Fund Adjustment Variabte Fund Adjustment
2007
2008
2009
201 0
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

3%
6.6
(2.1)
(1.3)
(1.2)
(7.0)
(e.6)

4.7
2.9
0.5

1}Yo

0
(42)
22
11

(7)

9

25
2
(s)

3. Conlributions

Required contributions are de[ermined by an annuaI acluariatvaluation in accordance wilh Chapter 40 oF the

Wisconsin Slalules. The employee required conlribution is one-halF oF lhe acLuaria[[y determined conlribution ra[e

For generaIcalegory employees, inctuding teachers, and Execulives and Etected Otticiats. Slarting on January 1,

20'16, the Executives and Etecled Otticials cðlegory was merged inlo lhe CeneraI Employee Category. Required

contributions tor prolective employees are the same r¿te as generatemployees. Employers are required to
contribule lhe remained oF lhe actuaria[[y determined conlribulion rale. The emptoyer may not pay lhe emptoyee

required contribulion unless provided tor by an existing co[[eclive bargaining agreemenl.

During the reporLing period ending December 31,2016, the WRS recognized $83,002 in conlributions From Lhe

Vit[age.

Conlribution ra[es For the reporting period are:

Emptoyee Category Emptoyee Emptoyer
Cenera[ (inct uding teachers)
Prolective with Sociat Securi[y
ProLec[ive without Social Security

6.6%
6.6o/o

6.60/o

6.6%
9.4%

13.2o/o
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4. pension Liabitities, Pension Expense, and Deterred Outftows of Resources and DeFerred lnttows of Resources

Retated Eo Pensions

Af December 31,2017, the Vi[lage reported a tiability oF 569,531 tor ils proporlionale share of the nel pension

tiabitity. The net pension tiabitity wôs measured as of December 31,2016, and [he lolal pension tiabitity used to

calculale the net pension tiabitity was determined by an actuariatvaluaLion as oF December 31, 2015 rolted forward

[o Decembe r 31 ,2016. No malerial changes in assumptions or beneFil [eTms occurred belween lhe actuarìal

valuation dale and the measuremenl date. The Village's proportion oF the net pension tlabitity was based on the

ViLtage's share of conlribu[ions [o the pension plan retalive [o the contributions of a[[ parlicipating employers. A[

December 31,2016, the Viltage's proportion was 0.00843576%, which was an increase oF 0.00000875% trom i[s

proportion measured as oF December 31, 2015.

For the year ended December 31,2017, the Viltage recognized pension expense oF 5181,5'13.

AL Decembe r 31 ,2017, the Vittage reported deterred outttows oF resouTces and deFerred inFtows oF resources

related to pensions trom lhe totlowing sources:

DeFerredOutFtows Deterredlntlows
oF Resources of Resources

Difterences beLween expected and actuaI experience
Net ditFerences between projected and actuat

earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and ditterences between

emp I oyer contributions a nd propo rtio na le sha re

of contribuLions
Employer contributions subsequent Lo the

measurement dale
Tolat

s 26,517 5 218,668

346,102
72,697

7,787

90,632

5 543,730 5 218,668

S90,632 reported as deFerred oulttows retaled to pension resulLing trom lhe Vittage's con[ributions subsequent lo

lhe measuremenL d¿te witt be recognized as a reduction oF the net pension tiabitity (asse[) in the year ended

December 31 ,2018. Other amounLs reporled as deFerred oultlows oF resources and deferred inFtows of resources

retaled to pension witt be recognized in pension expense as Fottows:

Year ended
December 31,

Net DeFerred
Outtlow ot
Resources

zo17
201 I
2019
2020
2021
Totat

s 94,803
94,803
64,873

(20,193)
144

s 234,430
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5. ActuarialAssumplions

The lolaI pension tiabitity in [he December 31, 20'16, acluarialvalualion was determined using Lhe tollowing

actu¿riatassumptions, appLied to a[[ periods included in the measuremenL:

Acfuarial Valuation Date: December 31,2015
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liabitity (Asset): December 31,2016
AcLuaria[ CosL Method: EntrY Age
AsseLVatuation Method: FairVatue
Long- lerm Expected Rale of Relurn: 7.2Vo

Discount Rate: 7.2Yo

Salary lncreases:
lntlaLion 3.2Vo

Seniority/Merit O.2Vo - 5.6Yo

Mortatity Wisconsin 2012 Morlatity Tabte
Post- reLirement Adjustments* 2.1Vo

* No post-retirement adjustment is guaronteed. Actuol odjustments are based on recognized investment return,

actuorial experience and other foctors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adiustment bosed on the investment return

ossumption and the post-retirement discount rote.

AcfuariaI assumptions are based upon ên experience study conduc[ed in 201 5 using experience From 201 2 - 2014.

The fotal pension tiabitity tor Decembe r 31 ,2016 is based upon a rott-Forward of the tiabitity catculaled From the

December 31, 2015 actuariaI valualion.

Long-lerm Expected Return on Ptan Assets. The long-lerm expecled rate of relurn on pension plan inveslments

was deLermined using a buitding-btock meLhod in which best-estimaLe ranges oF expecLed tulure reaI raLes oF

relurn (expecled relurns, nel oF pension plan investmenl expense and inFtation) are developed For each major

asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the tong-lerm expected rate of return by weighting lhe

expecled FuLure reaI rales oF reLurn by the targe[ asset attocation percenLage and by adding expected inFtation.

The targel atlocation and best eslim¿tes of ari[hmeLic reaI rales oF return For each major asset class are

summarized in the Following tabte:

Currenl Asset
Attocation %

DesLination
Targel AsseL
A[tocation %

Long-term
Expected Nominal
Rate of Relurn %

Long- term
Expected Real

Rale of ReLurn %

Core Fund Asset C[ass
Gtobat Equities
Fixed lncome
lntla tion Sensitive Assets
ReaI Eslate
Private Equity/Debt
Multi-asseL
TotaI Core Fund

Variable Fund Asset Ctass
U.S. Equi[ies
lnternationaI Eq uities
TotalVariabte Fund

50%
24.51o
15.5%

8%
9Yo

4o/o

110%

70o/o

3OYo

100o/o

4SVo

37Yo

ZOYo

7o/o

7%o

4Yo

120o/o

8.3Yo

4.2%
4.3o/o

65%
9.4Yo

6.6%
7.4Yo

5.4Yo

1. Vo

15%
3.6Yo

6.5Yo

3.7Vo

4.5To

4.7Yo

5.6Yo

SYo

7jYo
3jVo

lOOo/o

7.6Yo

8.SYo

7.9o/o

New Engtand Pension ConsuttanLs Long Term US CPI (lnFtation) Forecast: 2.75%

Asset Attocalions are managed within established ranges, larget percenLages may diFter From

actuaI monthty a[ [ocations
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Singte Discount Rate. A single discounl rate of 7.20% was used to meôsure Lhe total pension tiabitity. This single

discount ra[e w¿s based on [he expected rale oF relurn on pension ptan investmenls oF 7.20o/o and a long-term

bond rate of 3.78o/o. Because oF Lhe unique slruclure of WRS, lhe7.20o/o expected rate oF relurn implies [ha[ a

dividend of approximatety 2.1% wi[[ atways be paid. For purposes oF the singte discount ra[e, iL was assumed lhat
the dividend would always be paid. The projection oF c¿sh ttows used to deLermine this singte discounL raLe

assumed lhal plan members contributions wi[[ be made aI lhe current conLribution r¿te and that employer

con[ribu[ions wi[[ be made al rates equaI to the diFterence belween actuaria[[y deEermined contribution r¿tes and

lhe member rate. Based on Lhese assump[ions, Lhe pension plan's tiduciary net position was projected to be

availabte lo make at[ projecLed Fulure beneFiL paymen[s (including expecled dividends) of currenl plan members.

ThereFore, the [ong-[erm expected rate of return on pension plan inveslments was applied lo at[ periods ot
projecled benetit paymenls io delermine the toLaI pension tiabitity.

Sensitivity oF the Vi[[age's proportionate share of the net pension tiabitity (asset) to changes in the discount
rate. The Fottowing presents Lhe Village's proporLionate share oF the net pension tiabitity (asset) calculaled using

the discounl raLe of 7.2 percen[, as wel[ as what the Viltage's proportionate share of Lhe net pension tiabitity (asset)

would be it it were calcula[ed using a discounl rale [hat is 1-percenlage-poinL lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percen[age-

point higher (8.20 percent) than Lhe currenl ra[e:

1% Decrease Lo Currenl 'l% lncrease lo
DiscounL Rate DiscounL Rate Discount RaLe

(6.200/") (7.200/") (8.20%)

Vittage's proportionale share ot
lhe net pension tiabitity (assel) 5 914,722 5 69,531 5 (581,305)

Pension ptan fiduciary net position. De[ailed intormalion abouL the pension ptan's fiduciary net posilion is

available in separa[ely issued FinancialsLa[ements availabte at http://etF.wi.gov/publicalions/caFr.h[m.
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6. Payables Eo the Pension Ptan

At Decembe r 31 ,2017, the Vittage reported a payable of $ 1 3,01 1 tor lhe outstanding amount of contributions to
the pension plan tor lhe year ended December 31,2017.

K. FUND EQUITY

Nonspendabte Fund Batance

ln the lund tinanciaI stalements, portions of the governmentaI Fund batances are ðmounts lhal canno[ be spenl
because they are either 1) noL in spendable torm or 2) tegatly or contracluatty required to be mainlained intacl. Al
December 31 ,2017, nonspendable Fund balance wês ðs Fottows:

CeneraI Fund
NonspendabI e

Long-term receivables 5 136,722

RestricLed Fund Balance

ln the Fund tinanciaI statements, porLions oF governmentaI tund ba[¿nces ¿re nol available tor appropriation or ¿re

tegalty res[ric[ed For use tor a specitic purpose. At December 31,2017, reslricted tund batance wôs ðs totlows:

SpeciaI Revenue Funds
Restricted For

Libra ry s 201,058

Debt Service Fund
Restricted tor

Debt service 118,678

Capilat Projects tunds
Res[ricted tor

T lF dislrict no. 1 tund - projecl costs
CapilaI projects iund - debt proceeds

Capitat ouLlay

SpeciaI Revenue Funds
Commitled tor

Recrea Lion
Solid wasLe
Veterans memorial park

923,483

483,791

TotaI Restricled Fund Balance s 1,727,010

Committed Fund Balance

ln lhe Fund FinanciaIstalemenLs, porlions oF governmenl tund balances are committed by Village Board action. At
December 31 ,2017, CovernmenlaI Fund balance was commiLLed as toltows:

s 37,916
20,159

7,895

Total Committed Fund Balance
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Assigned Fund Batance
porlions of governmenlaI Fund balances have been assigned Lo represenI Lenlative mðnêgement ptans Lhat are subjecL

fo change. A[ December 31,2017, fund balance was assigned as Fo[[ows:

CeneraI Fund
Assigned tor subsequenl years budget

Budgeted 2018 Ceneral Fund Expenditures
Minimum Fund Balance %
Minimum Fund Balance AmounL

CovernmentaI Activities
Reslricted tor

Debt service
Libra ry

TolaI CovernmentaI ActiviLies Reslricted Net Position

5 4,632

Minimum GeneraI Fund Batance Policy

The Vittage has also adopted a minimum Fund balance poticy oF 25% oF subsequent year budgeled expenditures for [he

general Fund. The minimum Fund batance is mainlained For cash tlow and working capilal purposes. The minimum Fund

b¿tance amount is calcutaled as Foltows:

5 467,793

The Vittage's unassigned generaI fund batance oF S1,235,639 is above lhe minimum Fund balance amoun[.

Ne! Position
The ViLtage reporLs reslricted net position al December 31 ,2017 as Foltows:

5 1 ,871 ,171
(x)2s%

s 52,547
201,058
253,605

Business- type AcLivities
RestricLed tor

Equipment replacemenl 569,285

TotaI Restricted NeL Position s 822,890

L. COMPONENT UNIT

Community Development AuthoritY
This report conlains the Communi[y Developmenl Authority (CDA), which is inctuded ðs ¿ component unil.

ln addilion [o [he basic FinanciaI slalements and the preceding noles to Financialslatements which appty, the toltowing

addi[ionaI disclosures are considered necessary tor a tair presenlalion.

Þ Basis of Accoun[ing/Measuremenl Focus - The CDA Follows the Futt accruaI basis ol accounling and the Flow oF

economic resources meêsuTemenI Focus.

Þ Deposits and lnves[menls - At year-end, [he carrying amounL of the CDA's deposi[s was $'l 41 ,063 and is parl of lhe

Viltage's comingled cash. See Nole 3.4.

Þ The CDA has provided loans to [oca[ businesses. The CDA records a loan receivabte when lhe loan has been made

and Funds have been disbursed. lnteresl received trom loan repayments is recognized as Tevenue when received in

cash. The loans receivable are shown net of an altowance For uncottectibtes in Lhe amounl oF 520,801.
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NOTE 4: OTHER INFORMAT¡ON

A. TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICTS

The Vitlage has established a separate capi[aI projects tund For Tax lncremenlaI Dis[ricL (TlD) No. 1 which was created by

the Village in accordance wilh Section 66.1 105 oF the Wisconsin Statutes. At the lime the DistricL was created, the
properLy Lax base within Lhe Districl was "frozen" and increment taxes resutting From increases to the property lax base

are used lo Finance DislricL improvemen[s, including principaland inlerest on long-Lerm debt issued by the Vil[age to
tinance such improvemen[s. The StatuLes attow etigible projecl costs to be incurred up [o five years prior to the
maximum [erminaLion daLe. The Viltage's DistricL is stitt etigibte lo incur projecl cosls.

Since creation of lhe above Dislrict, the Vittage has provided various Financing sources to lhe TlD. The toregoing
amounts are nol recorded as liabilities in lhe TID capilal project Fund bul can be recovered by the Vittage From any

tuLure excess lax incremenL revenues. As oF December 31, 2017, lhe Vitlage can recover 5784,553 trom Fulure excess

lax increment Tevenues of lhe District.

The Vittage lermina[ed TID No. '1 in March 20'lB.

B. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Viltage is exposed to various risks oF loss relaled to [or[s; thett of, damage to and deslruclion oF assets; errors and

omissions; and naturaI disasters For which the government carries commerciaI insurance. The Vi[[age compLeles an

annuaI review of its insurance coveTage lo ensure adequale coverage.

C. CONTINGENCIES

From [ime lo time, the Vittage is party lo olher various pending claims and legaI proceedings. Although lhe outcome ot
such matters cannot be ForecasL wiLh certainLy, it is the opinion oF managemenI and the Vi[[age ALlorney that the
[iketihood is remote thal any such ctaims or proceedings witl have a maLeriaI adverse eFFecl on the Viltage's tinanciaI
position or resulLs of operations.

D. ENTERPRISE FUNDS - SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

The sewer utility has one signiticanl customer who was responsibte f or 27o/o oF operaling revenues in 2017

The waler utitity has one significant cuslomer who was responsible for 14o/o oF operating revenues in2017

E. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On January 4,2018, the Vitlage paid oFF the 2009 Siate Trusl Fund Lo¿n tor 578,500 and the 2016 State Trusl Fund

Loan tor S1,194,535.

F. UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

ln January 2017, the CASB issued Stalemenl No. 84, Fiduciory Activifies. The Sl¿temen[ esLablishes crileria For

identitying Fiduciary acLiviLies and addresses financiaI reporLing For these aclivilies. This slatemenL is ettecLive For

reporfing periods beginning aFler J une 15,2018. The Vitlage is currenLty evaluating the impacl this sl¿ndard witl have

on lhe Financiatslatements when adopled.

ln June 2017, the CASB issued Statemenl No. 87, Leoses. The Sla[emenL esLablishes a single model For lease accoun[ing
based on lhe principle that leases are Financings oF the right to use ên undertying assel. This sLalemen[ is eFFeclive For

repor[ing periods beginning atter December 1 5, 2019. The Vitlage is currenLty evaluatlng lhe impacl this standard wil[
have on Lhe tinanciaI s[alements when adopted.
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
SSHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)

WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST ].0 FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal
Year End¡ng

Proport¡on of
the Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

Proportionate
Share ofthe
Net Pension

covered
Payroll

(plan year)

Proportionate
Share of the Net
Pension Liability

(Asset) as a
Percentage of

covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Posit¡on as a
Percentage of the

Total Pension
Liability (Asset)Liability (Asset)

1213111s
12131/16
12131117

0.008584s3% s

0.00842701Vo
0.008435767o

(210,860) 5

136,937
69,531

967,281
1,015,260
1 ,062,7 56

21.80Yo
13.491o
6.54Yo

102.7 4Yo

98.20Yo

99.12o/o

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST I.O FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal
Year Ending

contractually
Required

contributions

contributi0ns in
Relati0n to the
contractually

Required
contributions

c0ntribution
Deficiency
(rxcess)

covered
Payroll

(fiscalyea

c0ntr¡butions
as a Percentage of
covered-Employee

Payrollr)

213
213
¿l 5

l1
/1
/1

55

6

7

80,s88
83,4'1s
90,632

80,588
83,415
90,632

1,015,260
1 ,062,7 56
1,056,041

7.94Yo

7.85Yo

8.58%

5

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

There were no changes oF benefi[ [erms or assump[ions tor any participaLing employer in the WRS

The amounts reported For each Fiscatyear were determined as oF the calendar year-end that occurred within lhe prior tiscal

year. The Vittage is required to presenl lhe last len fiscalyears of data; however accounting standards atlow the plesentaLion

oF as many years as are availabte unLil ten Fiscalyears are presented.
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
GENERAL FUND

DETAILED COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL REVENUES ANt] OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L.2gT7

Budget

variance
F¡nal Budget -

P0sitive
(Negative)0rig¡nal Final Actual

Taxes
CeneraI proper[y
Mobile home Fees

Taxes trom Lax exempt entities
lnteresi and taxes
ToLaI taxes

lntergovern men La I

Sta[e
State shared revenue
Expenditure restraint
Fire insurance
Public saFety
Potice
Transportation
Recycting
Exempt compu[er aid

Local
SchooI grant - liason oFFicer

TotaI intergovern men taI

Licenses and permiLs

Licenses
Liquor and malt beverages
Operators
Bicycle
Cigarette
Dog
Obher

Permits
Buitding
Zoning Permits
Cab[e television Fees

Cable tetevision tees
Other regulatory permits

and tees
Tota[ [icenses and permiLs

Fines and Forfeits
Courl Fines and penatLies

Parking viotations
ToLaI tine and torteits

752,941 5

72,000
26,000

400

752,941 5

72,000
26,000

400

3,044
(e,330)

545
(1 8e)

$ 755,985
62,670
26,545

211

s

851 341 851 341 845,411 (s,e30)

'132,888

10,000
900

423,721
48,452
7,000
1,540

132,888
10,000

900

423,721
48,452
7,000
1,540

423,721
48,700

8,253
1]20

12,523
132,601

10,279
145

248
I ?q?

(420)
12,523

(287)

279
(7ss)

10,000 10 000
634,501 634 50 647,342 12,841

3,770
1,650

300
4,000

50

300
4,000

50

3,770
1,650

10,000
2,500

44,400

2 0(o

1,900
3

558
4,554

230

189
250

3

258
554
180

'10,000

2,500

44,400

10,479
'1,6'10

s99
44,972

479
(8e0)

599
572

200 1,200 1,539 339

68 020 68,020 70,603 2,s83

s0,000
5,500

s0,000 (11,123)
(631)

38,877
4,869

43,7 46
5 500

55,500
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

Budget

Variance
Final Budget -

P0sitive
(Negative)original Fi nal Actual

Pubtic charges tor services

CeneraI governmenL

Snow removaI
Weed and nusiance control
Lawn mowing
Law entorcement
Titte assessment
TotaI pubtic charges For

services

Misceltaneous
lnterest on investments
Renl oF Vi[[age buitdings
Sale of Village properly
Other
TotaI miscettaneous

Total Revenues

OLher Financing sources
TransFer in

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

2,000
300

1,000

2,000
300

1,000

162
246
124

2,000
711

84
246
124

78 78

2s0
411
250

3 378 3,378 4,493 115

10,000
13,200

10,000
13,200

29,585
11,700
6,057

19,585
(1,s00)
6,057

11,4527300 300 11

23,500 23 s00 59,094 35,594

1,636,240 1,636,240 1,670,689 34 449

191,294 191 294 150 653 (40,641)

s 1,827.534 y-927 534_ s 1.821.342 s (6.192)
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
GENERAL FUNt]
DETAILED COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDET] DECEMBER 31.20L7

Budget

variance
F¡nal Budget -

Positive
(Negative)or na Fi nal Actual

Ceneral Covernment
Viltage board
Commissions and commiltees
Municipalcourt
Cterk oF courts
ALborney
Vittage president
Viltage administraLor
Cterk
Clerk administra[ive assistant
Deputy clerk
ElecLions
Legistative supporl
DUeS

Maps and plat books
Accounling and auditing
Assessmenl of proper[y
MunicipaI buildings
Uncoltec[ibte taxes
I nsura nces
To[aI generaI governmenL

Public Satety
Police administration
Police otFice manager
Potice [ieutenant
Community oFticer
Police patroI
SchooI paLroI

Danecom
Fire prolection
EMS

Building inspeclion
TotaI public saFety

Public Works
Highway administration
Machinery and equipment
Carage and shop
Engineering
Streets and highways
Street signs and markings
Snow removal

Þ 6,002 $

1,185
11 ,451
22,981

8,000
4,131

57,337
55,592

6,002 s
1,185

11,451
22,981

8,000
4,131

57,337
55,592

6,682 s
508

8,410
21,527
28,777

4,792
84,670
69,425
27,839
13,339
t o20

12,294
1,305

24,700
13,177
49,173
1,096

(680)

677
3,041

1,454
(20,777)

(661)
(27,333)
(13,833)
(27,83e)
21 ,7 57

3,665
(7,7e4)

946
50

(s,2oo)
(27)

(14,680)
(687)

(4e,642)

35,096
6,604
4,500
2,251

50
19,500
1 3,150
34,493

409

63,100

35,096
6,604
4,500
2,251

50
19,500
'13,150

34,493
409

63 100 112 742

345 832 345,832 48 5 (137,563)

107,056
68,233
94,951

500
588,994

17,246
5,555

94,199
113,407

10,000

107,056
68,233
94,951

500
588,994

17,246
5,555

94,199
113,407

10,000

133,802
67,249
96,862

477
540,038

16,754
3,991

93,290
1 13,983

11,204

(26,7 46)
984

(1,e11)

23

48,956
492

1,564
909

(s76)
(1,204)

1,100,141 1,100,141 1,077,650 22,491

37,622
30,000

121,711

29,860
1,750

12,900

37,622
30,000

121 ,7 11

29,860
1,750

12,900

38,147
21,639

101,647
600

23,423
2,97 5

7,958

(s2s)
8,361

20,064
(600)

6,437
(1,2?.s)

4,942
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin

GENERAL FUND

DETAILED COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL EXPENNITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENI]ED DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

Budget

Variance
Final Budget -

P0sitive
(ruegative)or¡ginal Fi nal Actual

Public Works (continued)

Street tighting
Sidewatks
S[orm sewers
Weed and nuisance conlroI
TotaI pubtic works

Hea[[h and Human Services

Cotonialclub
Historicalsociety
Total heatth and human services

Culture and Recrealion

Recreation direclor
Community buitding

31 8 Farnham property

834 W Main Stree[

Cetebrations

Tree program

TolaI cutlure and recreation

Conservation and Developmenl
Plan commission

Board oF appeats

Tolatconserva[ion and

deve[opmenl

ToLaI Expenditures

46,500
2,700
1,000
1 500

46,500
2,700
1,000
1,500

44,929
3,421

467

1 ,571
(721)
533
500

285 543 285 543 245,206 40,337

7,500
1,500

9,000

7,500
1,500

7,500
1,500

9,000 7,500 5001

70,837

12,600

400

400

1,150

50

70,837

12,600

400

400

1,150

50

2,643

342
400

(226)

(606)

(eo2)

68,194

12,258

626

1,756

952

85,437 85,437 83,786 1,651

1,481

100

1,481

100

602 879

100

1,581

5 1,827,s34

1,58'1 602 979

5 1,827 ,s34 S 1,898,139 5 (70,60s)
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 3I,2OL7

Special Revenue

ASSETS

Cash and invesLmenls
Receivabtes

Taxes and speciaI charges
Accounts

Assets held For resate

TolaI asseLs

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LiabiIities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other current tiabi[ities
Advance From other Funds

Tota[ [iabitities

DeFerred inflows oF resources
ProperLy Laxes levied for subsequent year

Fund balances
Nonspendabte
Restricted
Commilled
Unassigned

TotaI fund b¿[ances

Tota[ [iabitilies, deterred inFtows of resources,
and fund balances

Recreation campground Library

40,160 $

2s,000

1,s49 $ ZOS,S8¡s

18',I,700
1,547

s 6s.160 s 1,s49 I 389,825_

5 2,204
40

5 tø,zqg S 2,180
4,887

2,244 16,249 0677

25 000 181,700

201,058
37,916

(14,700)

37 916 (14,700) I 058

s 65,160 s 1.549 s 389.825
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special Revenue

solid waste
veterans

MemorialPark
capital
Projects T0tals

$ ¡¡,000 $ 7,89s 5 sss,6:g 5 876,486

5,938
154,722

206,700
7,480

154,722

5 33.660 s 7.895 s 747.299 l_l¿ls,388_

$ t ¡,sot S
(

5'108,786

136,722

142,920
4,927

136 722

13 245,508 284,569

206,700

20,159 7,895

18,000
483,791

18,000
684,849

65,970
(14,700)

20,159 8957 501 791 7 54 ,119

s 33.660 s 7.89s s 747.299 l_1,24s.389-
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNt]S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OT7

Special Revenue

Recreation campground Library
REVENUES

Taxes
ln Lergovern mental
Public charges For services
lntergovernmentaI charges for services
Miscetlaneous

TolaI revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public works
CutLure and recrea[ion

Debt service
lnterest and FiscaI charges

Capilaloutlay

TotaI expenditures

Excess oF revenues over (under) expendibures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Long-term debt issued
Premium on debl issued
TransFers out

ToLaI other Financing sources (uses)

Net change in tund batances

Fund balances - January 1

Fund balances - December 31

Þ
(

s2s,000

70,165

177,000
54,446
8,906
9,433
2,8976566

101,821 252,682

99,697 s8,337 260,777

1,424
15,266

546,082 50 030

101 121 619 685 31 0,807

700 (619,685) (s8,12s)

590,000
14,985

604,98s

700

37,216

(14,700) (s8,12s)

2s9,183

) 37 .916 s (1 4.700) s 201 .os8
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special Revenue

50lid t^Jaste
Veterans

MemorialPark
capital
Projects Totals

$ 1,700 s

1 61,865

203,700
54,446

240,936
9,433

10,153

(
5

600

163,565 600 s18,668

177,245

21,088
198,453

177,245
419,004

36,354
795,989

193

177,245 193 219 541 428 592

(13,680) 407 (219,s41\ (eje,e24)

8'15,000
20,699

(63,000)

'1,405,000

35,684
(63,000)

772,699 1,377,684

(13,680)

33,839

407

7,488

553,158

(s1,367)

467 ,7 60

286,3s9

s 20.159 s 7,895 s 501.791 s 754.119
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF WATER UTILITY

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OT7

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges tor services

Residen[ial
Mutti-Fami[y
CommerciaI
lndustriaI
Pubtic authority
Private Fire protecLion
Public tire proLection
TolaI charges tor services

Other revenues
Forteiled discounLs
Other water revenues
To[aI other revenues

TolaI opera[ing revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and mainlenance

Source of suppty expenses
Operation [abor
Purchased water
TolaI source oF suppty expenses

Pumping expenses
OperaLion [abor
Fue[ or power purchased tor pumping
Operalion suppties and expenses
Maintenance oF pumping ptanl
TotaI source oF suppty expenses

Water lrealment expenses
Operation [abor
Chemicats
Operalion supplies and expenses
Maintenance of treatmenl plant
TotaI source of suppty expenses

Transmission and distribution expenses
Operation [abor
Operation supp[ies and expenses
Maintenênce of dist¡ibution reservoirs and standpipes
Maintenance oF mains
MainLenance of services
Mainlenênce oF meters
Maintenance of hydranls
TotaI transmission and disLribu[ion expenses

5 290,634
112,549
28,363

2,607
11,349
1,152

177 990
624,644

2,623
18,233
20,856

645,500

12,706
2,059

14,7 65

632
16,926

1,247
23,568
42,373

18,967
5,618
5,947

6 ¡{

32,150

20,721
7,675
1,000

12,860
1,00s
1,774

927

45,962
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
SCHET]ULE OF WATER UTILITY
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENBED DECEMBER 3L.2OL7

Cuslomer accoun! expenses
Meter reading [abor
Accounling and coltecting [abor
Suppties and expense
Uncotlec[ible amounts
TolaI source oF supply expenses

Adminislralive and generaI
Sataries and wages

Oftice suppties and expenses
Oulside services employed
lnsurance expenses

Emptoyees pensions and beneFits
Miscetlaneous generaI expenses
TolaI administrative and generaI

IotaI operation and mainlenance
Depreciation
Taxes
TotaI operating expenses

Operating income

2077

790
13,629
7,395
5,264

27 078

26,344
8,618

14,359
1,554

25,609
5 304

81,788

244,116
159,348

5 191
408,655

l---236.845-
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Village of Marshall, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF SEWER UTILITY
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L.2BI7

OPERATINC REVENUES
Charges tor services

ResidenLial
Mutti-tamily
CommerciaI
lndustriaI
Public authority
TotaI charges For services

Other revenues
Forteited discounts
Other sewer revenues
TotaI other revenues

IotaI operaling revenues

OPERATINC EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance

Plant operation
Supervision and [abor
Power and tuel For pumping
Phosphorous removaI chemicals
Other chemicats
Olher operating supplies
Joinl melering costs
Transporlation
Studge hauting
TotaI plant operation

Plant main[enance
Cotlection syslem
Pumping equipment
Trealmen! and disposaI ptant equipment
CeneraI ptanl slructures and equipment
ToLaI ptant mainlenance

Customer accounls
Accounling and coltecting

AdministraLive and generaI
Sala ries
OFtice suppties
OuEside services employed
lnsurance expenses
Employees pensions and beneFits
Regutalory commission
MisceItaneous
TotaI administrative and generaI

To[aI operation and maintenance
Deprecialion
Taxes
TotaI operating expenses

123,148

331,002
302,827

'10,258

644,087

5 485,119
264,671

43,767
2,843

20,481
816 88'1

2,946
4,198
7 ,144

824,025

61,302
54,765
3,624
5J22

17,594
1,282
2,008

11,445
157,142

15,323
4,785

12,570
967

36,645

14,067

26,146
15,875
41,503

6,318
27,915

1,941
3,450

Operating income
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Schenck Ð
ADVISORY i TAX I ASSURANCË

lndependent auditors' report on internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Vi[[age Board

Vi[[age of M¿rsha[, Wisconsin

We have audlled, in accordance wilh [he auditing slandards generally accepLed in the Uniled S[ates oF Americ¿ and the

st¿ndards applicable to tinanciaI audiLs contained in Government Auditing Standords issued by the Comptro[[er CeneraI

oF lhe United States, lhe Financiatstatemenls of the governmentatactivities, lhe business-type activi[ies, lhe discrelety
presenled component uniL, each major Fund, and the aggregale remaining Fund inFormaLion of the Vittage of Marshatt,

Wisconsin (the "Vittage") as oF and For Lhe year ended December 31 ,2017, ðnd lhe retaled no[es to the Financial

slðtemenLs, which cotleclivety comprise the Vittage's basic Financials[atements, and have issued our report lhereon

dated May 4,2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINC

ln planning and performing our audit oF the tinanciaI s[alements, we considered [he Vitlage's inlernal conlrolover
tinanciaI reporting (internatcontrot) lo delermine the audiI procedures lhal are appropriale in lhe circumsLances For

the purpose oF expressÌng our opinions on [he tinanciaI sla[ements, bul not For the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness oF the Vitlage's inlernaI conlro[. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on Lhe ettecliveness of
the Vitlage's inlernaI contro[.

A deticiency in inlernaI conLro[ exisls when lhe design or operalion oF a control does noL a[[ow management or

emptoyees, in the normaI course oF pertorming their assigned tuncLions, lo prevenl, or detecl and correct,

misstatements on ¿ limely basis. A maleri¿[weakness is a deficiency, or a combinalion oF deFiciencies, in inLernaI conlrol
such th¿t there is a reasonabte possibility [haL a materiaI missLatemenl oF the Vittage's tinancialstatemen[s wi[[ not be

prevented, or de[ected and corrected on a limely basis. A signiFicanl deFiciency is a deticiency, or a combination ot
deFiciencies, in inLernaIcontrol thaL is less severe [han a ma[eriatweakness, yet impor[ant enough [o meril allenlion by

those charged with governance.

Our consideration oF inlernaI conLro[was For the [imited purpose described in lhe Firsl paragraph oF this seclion and

was noL designed to identity at[ deticiencies in internalcon[ro[ that might be materialweaknesses or signiticant

deticiencies and lheretore, m¿[eriatweaknesses or signiFicant deFiciencies may exisl lhaI were not identitied. Civen

Lhese [imitalions, during our audil we did not identity any deFiciencies in internaIcon[ro[ that we consider to be

malerialweaknesses. We did idenliFy a cerlain deFiciency in inLernaI conLro[, described in lhe accompanying schedule oF

Findings and responses as ilem 2017-001 lhal we consider to be a signiFicanl deFiciency.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whe[her the Vittage's FinanciaI slatemenls are Free trom maLerial

missla[ement, we perFormed tesls oF its compliance with certain provisions oF [aws, regulations, conlTacts, and grant

ðgreemenls, noncompliance wilh which could have a direct and maleriaI eFFecL on the determination of Financial

sl¿temenI amounts. HoweveT, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was nol ðn objeclive oF our

audiL, and accordingty, we do not express such an opinion. The resut[s oF our lests disctosed no insLances of
noncompliance or other mðtlers lhat are required to be reporLed under Covernment Auditing Stondards.

schencksc.com
Schenck SC
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VILLAGE OF MARSHALL, WISCONSIN,S RESPONSE TO FINDING

The Vittage's response lo lhe Finding identitied in our audiI is described in Lhe accompanying schedute oF Findings and
responses. The Village's response was not subjecled lo the audiling procedures applied in Lhe audil oF lhe tinancial
slatemenLs and, accordingty, we express no opinion on il.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose oF this reporL is solely to describe lhe scope of our Lesting oF in[ernal conLrol and compliance and lhe
resutt oF thal lesting, and not to provide an opinion on lhe ettectiveness oF lhe Village's internaI conlrol or on
comptiance. This report is an inlegraI part oF an audiL perFormed in accordance with Goyern ment Auditing Stondordsin
considering the Vi[age's internaI con[ro[ and compliance. Accordingty, this communicalion is nol suitable Forany other
purpose.

/¿,r,-/r.
CerliFied Public Accountan[s

Creen Bay, Wisconsin

May 4, 2018
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V¡llage of Marshall, Wisconsin

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L,2OL7

SECT¡ON ¡- ¡NTERNAL CONTROL OVER F¡NANCIAL REPORTING

FINDING NO. CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

2017-001

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

EFFect:

Recommendation:

ManagemenL

Response:

Segregation of Duties
Repeal Finding

The Vittage has a [imited number of employees to essenlia[[y complete a[[ tinanciaI and

recordkeeping dulies oF the Vi[[age. Accordingly, this does noI a[[ow For a proper segregation ot
dulies For inlernaI controI putposes.

Segregation oF duties is an internaI control inLended to prevenl or decrease Lhe occurrence ot
errors or inlentionaI Fraud. Segregation oF duties ensures thal no single emptoyee has conlrol
over a[[ phases of a Lransaclion.

The lack oF segregation of duLies is due to the limited number of employees and lhe size of the
Vitlage's operations. ln addition, the Vittage has nol compleled a tormaI risk assessmenl and

review oF internaI conlrots to identiFy addilionaI mitigating and compensating controls which
could be imptemenied Lo reduce the risk oF errors or in[enlional fraud.

Errors or inlentional traud could occur and not be detected [imely by other emptoyees in [he
normaI course oF lheir responsibitilies as a resutl of the lack oF segregalion of dulies.

We recommend the Village Board conlinue lo monilor Lhe Lransactions and lhe FinanciaI records
oF the Vi[[age. We recommend lhe Vi[[age pertorm a risk assessment of ils operalions and currenI
procedures [o identity and implemeni mitigating conlrols lo reduce the risk oF errors and

inlentionaI Fr¿ud.

Management believes that the cosl oF segregating cash receipls and cash disbursemenL dulies
from the retated recording iuncLions oulweigh lhe benetits lo be received.

SECT¡ON ¡I- COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

There are no Findings related lo comptiance ¿nd olher mðtlers that are required to be reporled under governmen[aI
auditing standards generally accepLed in the United StaLes oF America For the year ended December 31 ,2017 .
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